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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO
THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE (A SAUDI JOINT
STOCK COMPANY)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Company for Cooperative Insurance (the “Company™), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, the statements of income, comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes from 1 to 37.

[n our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2018, and financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“[FRSs™) as modified by Saudi
Arabian Monetary Authority (“SAMA”) for the accounting of zakat and income tax,

Basis for Gpinton

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs™) as endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under thase standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the professional code of conduct and ethics, as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of the most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addrassed in the context of our audit of
the financial statemenis as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters, For each key audit matter, a description of how our audit addressed the matter is set
out below:
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Key andit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Valuation of ultimate claim HNabilitles arising
from insitrance contracls

As at 31 December 2018, gross outstanding claims
and reserves including claims incurred but not
reported (IBNR) amounted to
Saudi Riyals 4.9 billion as reported in Note 10 to
the financial statements.

The estimation of ultimate insurance contract
liabilities involves a significant degree of
judgment. The liabilities are based on the best
estimate of ultimate cost of all claims incurred but
not setiled at the reporting date, whether reported
or not, together with the related claims handling
cost,

The estimation of insurance contract [iabilities
involves a significant degree of judgement. The
liabilities are based on the best-estimate of the
ultimate cost of all claims incurred but net settied
at the reporting date, whether reported or not,
together with the related claims handling costs. The
Company principally uses an external actuary
(“management’s expert™) to provide them with the
estimate of such liabilities. A range of methods
were used to determine these provisions which
were based on a number of explicit or implicit
assumptions relating to the expected settlement
amount and settlement patterns of claims,

We considered this as a key audit metter as the
valuation of insurance contract liabilities require
the use of significant judgement and estimates.

Refer to notes 2 and 3 to the financial statements
which explain the valuation methodology used by
the Company and critical fudgments and estimates.

We performed the following procedures:
e Understood, evaluated and tested key contrals around

the claims handling and provision setting processes.

Evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the management’s expert based on their
professional qualifications and experience and
assessed their independence.

Performed substantive tests on the amounts recorded
for a sample of claims notified and paid; including
comparing the outstanding claims amount to
appropriaie source documentation to evaluate the
valuation of outstanding claim reserves.

Obtained sufficient audit evidence to assess the
integrity of data used as inputs into the actuarial
valuations, and tested on sample basis, the accuracy of
underlying claims data utilised by the management's
expert in estimating the IBNR by comparing it to the
accounting and other records.

Challenged management’s methods and assumptions,
through assistance of our intemal actuarial expert to
understand and evaluate the Company’s actuarial
practices and provisions established and gained
comfort over the actuarial report issued by
management’s expert, by performing the following;

() Evaluated whether the Company’s actuarial
methodologies were consistent with generally
accepted actuarial practices and with prior years.
We sought sufficient justification for eany
significant differences;
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Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

(ii) Assessed key actuarial assumptions including

claims ratios and expected frequency and severity
of claims. We challenged these assumptions by
comparing them with our expectations based on
the Company's historical expetience, current
trends and our own industry knowledge; and

(iii) Reviewed the appropriateness of the calculation

methods and approach along with the assumptions
used and sensitivity analysis performed.

® Assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of the

related disclosures in the financial statements.

Valuation of available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments comprise a
portfolio of debt and investment in mutual funds.
amounted to Saudi Rivals 2.9 billion as at 31
December 2018, These instruments are measured
at fair value with the cotresponding fair value
changes recognised in other comprehensive
income.

For certain investments, fair valuation often
involve the exercise of judgment by the
management and the use of assumptions and
estimates.

Estimation uncertainty exists for those instruments
not traded in an active market and where the
significant uncbservable wvaluation inputs use
(level 3) is particularly high.

In the Company’s accounting policies, the
management has described the key sources of
estimation involved in determining the valuation of
level 3 financial instruments.

We considered this as a key audit matter given the
degree of complexity involved in valuing these
financial instruments and the significance of the
judgment and estimates made by the management.

We have performed the following procedures to obtain
comfort over the valuation of investments;

We have performed an assessment of the
methodology, appropriateness of the valuation
techniques and inputs used to value available-for-sale
investments.

We tested the valuation of available-for-sale
investments classified under level 2 and 3 of fair
value hierarchy. As part of these audit procedures, we
assessed key inputs used in the valuation such as the
pricing data used, credit spreads, etc.

We have also obtained confirmations from external
parties to corroborate the fair value of investments at
year end. Where appropriate, we have also reviewed
the valuation reports from external parties.
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Key audit matters

How the maiter was addressed in our andit

Refer to notes 2 and 28 to the financial statements
which explain the valuarion methodology used by
the Company and critical judgments and estimates.

Provision for doubtful receivables

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had
receivables of Saudi Riyals 1.6 billion, against
which an impairment provision of Saudi Riyals
159 million was maintained.

We considered this as a key audit matter as the
assessment of impairment requires subjective
judgments with respect to the estimation of the
ameunt and timing of future cash flows. In making
this judgment, the Company evaluates credit risk
characteristics that consider past-due status being
indicative of the ability to pay all amounts due as
per contractual terms. For individually significant
receivables, the Company also assesses the
impairment individually on a regular basts.

Refer to notes 2 and 3 to the financial statements
which explain the valuation methodology used by
the Company and critical judgments and estimates.

We understood, evaluated and tested the operating
effectiveness of key controls over management's process
of establishing provision against doubtful receivables.

We performed the following procedurss to obtain
comfort over provision against doubtful receivables:

Reviewed the methodology and judgments used and
challenged management’s key assumptions used in
assessing impairiment provision;

We considered the adequacy of provisions for
doubtful receivables for significant custamers, taking
into account specific credit risk assessments for each
customer based on time past due, the existence of any
disputes over the balance outstanding, the history of
settlements of receivables and review of
correspondence with the customers;

On sample basis checked the completeness and
accuracy of the receivables aging reports by tracing
the balances to the source documents;

Considered the consistency of the approach with the
prior years, and enquired about any major variations
and changes in key assumptions and its basis used;
and

We tested the subsequent collection of receivables
post year end.

Other Information included in the Company’s 2018 Annaal Report

The Board of Directors of the Company (the Directors) are responsible for the other information. The other
information consists of the information included in the Company’s 2018 annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the

date of this auditors* report,
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibifities of the Directors and Those Charged with Governance for ihe Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the IFRS as modified by SAMA for the accounting of zakat and income tax, the applicable requirements
of the Regulations for Companies and the Company’s By-laws, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless Directors either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so,

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audlt of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1ISAs as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 10 those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control;

-5-



oS IBDO < gl Saaa 5S4l

pwc Dr. Mohamed Al-Amri & Co.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Directors;

& Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to coniinve as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report fo the related disclosures
int the financia) statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up 1o the date of our auditors” report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

o  Evaluatethe overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we jdentify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the metters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless {aw or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Dr. Mohamed Al-Amri & Co.
PricewaterhouseCoopers Public Accountants & Consultants
P. 0. Box 8736
Riyadh 11491
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Gihad M., Al-Amri
Certified Public Accountant Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 369
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THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE

{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018
December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
Notes SAR'000
ASSETS
Statutory deposit 13 125,000 123,000
Accrued income on statutary deposit 2,254 1997
Property and equipment, net 4 266,233 279,051
Intangible assets 5 3633 7,653
Investment property 9,861 9.861
Invesiments in associates & 38116 95468
Available for sale investments 7 2,905,130 5,525,209
Mudaraba/ Murabaha deposits 8 2:239,128 82,035
Prepaid expenses and other assets Ed 261,088 191,369
Deferred excess of loss premiums 8,778 11,293
Deferred policy acquisition posts 10 130,651 170,790
Reinsurers® share of gross oustanding claims 10 2,728,809 1,375,277
Reinsurers’ share of incurred but o reporied claims 10 191,837 391,207
Reibsurers® share of unearned premiums 10 544,839 591,125
Recsivables, net i2 1,517,987 2,257,678
Accrued investment income - 158,093
Cash and cash equivalents 14 1,600,240 1,397,203
[4) l!éﬂ'ﬂ! 12,670,309
LIABILITIES
Reserve for discontinued operations 18 1,621 1,621
End-cFservice indemnities 17 133276 119,242
Retum pavable on statutory deposit 2,254 1,997
Claims payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities 16 1,513,102 1,29],652
Reserve for takafu! activities E.6%0 10,576
Gross outstanding claims {0 3.271,1%6 2,374,764
Incurred but not reported tlaims reserve 10 1,684,183 1,700,269
Premium deficiency reserve 10 7,272 137,248
Unearned commission incamne 1¢ 33,299 53,661
Gross uneprned premiums o 3,520,293 4,405,244
Reinsurers® balances payable 94,720 207,922
Dividends payable 6,411 8414
Zakat 20 2374080 233,318
TOTAL LIABJLITIES 10,819,357 10,543,928
Share; capital 21 1,250,000 1,250,000
Legal reserve 22 1,000,000 1,000,000
Fair value rescrve for investments 7 {198,724) {166,244}
Remeasurement of defined begefit abligation 17 {12,226) {5,879)
Retained eamings (230,829} 48,504
1,808,221 2,125,381
12,627,578 12,470,309
34

e,
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ese financial statements. 7




THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE

{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
STATEMENT OF INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

REVENUES

Gross premiwms written
Reinsurance ceded - jocal
Reinsurance ceded - international
Fee income from takaful

Excess of [oss premiums

Net premiurs written

Changes in uneamed premiums
Changes in reinsurers’ share of uneamed premiums
Net premlums enrned
Reinsurance commissions

Other underwriting income

JOTAL REVENUES

DERWRITI 3
Gross claims paid
Expenses incurred related to claims
Reinsurers' share of claims paid
Net claims and other benefits paid
Changes in cutstanding claims
Changes in reinsurance share of outstanding ¢laims
Changes in incurred but not reported claims reserve

Changes in seinsurance share of incurred but not reported claims

Changes in premium deficiency reserve
Net claims and other benefits incurved
Changes in reserves for takaful activities
Policy acquisition costs
Orher underwriting expenses
Manafeth insurance share distribution
TAL UNDERW N P

Net underwriting income/ (loss)

T El TN C
General and administrative expenses
Allowance for doubtful debts
Dividend end realized gain on investments, net
Share of profit from invesiments in associates, net
Cther income, net

JOTAL OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Net loss for the year

Surplus attributed to the insurance operations

Net Joss for the year attributable to the shareholders

Esrnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in SAR)
Weighted average number of shares in issue

10

n

23
12
24

. 301B 2017
SAR'000

7,641,245 8,406,669
(45,160) (257,090
(1,052,943) {834,310}
8.5M 5,423
{24,587 {40,375)
6,527,089 7,280,310
584,951 (15,015)
(46,286) 37,312
7,065,754 7,302,607
111,663 113,768
10,438 5,301
7,187,852 7.431.676
7,800,323 6,672,777
19,204 17,479
(847,028) (848,579)
6,972,499 5,841,677
896,392 227,663
(1,350,532} 405,125
(16,086) 154,672
199,370 (52,855)
{129,976) 137,248
6,571,667 6,813,530
(1,386) (2,326)
390,541 492,772
137,864 159,419
56,935 83335
7,155,128 7,546,730
32,727 {115,054)
(498,112) (474,521)
(20,235) {35,545)
216,801 434,323
29,698 13,748
25,782 30,905
{246,066) (31,490}
(213,339 (146,544)
213,339 (146,544)
{1.71) (L7
125,000,000 125,060,000




THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Notes
Net loss for the year
Net loss for the year attributable to insurance bperations
Net loss for the year attributable to shareholders

Other comprehensive income:

Not to be recycled back to statement of income in subsequent years:
Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation 1”7

To be recycled buck to statement of income in subsequent years:
Available for sale investments:

- Net change in fair value

= Net amounts transfecred to statement of income

Share of other comprehansive income of associates 6
Total comprehensive lpss for the yesr

b B

The accompanying notes | to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.
-9,

2018 2017
SAR'000
(213,339 (146,544)
(213,339) (146,544)
6,347) (5879
{9,063) {92,884)
(23,808) {12,247
N 104D
(252,166) {256,514)




THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Fairvalue  Remeasurements

Share Legal reserve for  of defined benefit  Retained
capital reserve imvestments obligation caraings Total
Notes SAR000
Bazlance at Jaouavy 1, 2017 1,000,000 1,000,000 {62,153) - 998,707 2,936,554
Comprehensive income for the year:
Net loss for the year - - . = (146,544) (146,544)
Actuerial (losses) an defined benefits
obligation ¥ - . . (5879 - {5.879)
Changes in fair value of availablc-for-
sale investments 7 - - (92,884} - . (92,5%4)
Amount transferred o  statement of
income 7 - - {12,247) . - (12.247)
Share of other compyehensive income
of investments In associates - - 1,040 - - 1040
Total comprehensive loss for the year
altributable to shareholders - - {104,091) (5,879  (146,544) {256,514)
Zakat 20 - - . - (53,859 {53,639}
Issuance of bonus shares 15 250,000 . B - {250,000 -
Dividend distribution 15 - - - - {500,000 {500,000)
Balance at December 31, 2017 1,250,000 1,004,000 {166,244) L5.879} 48,504 2,l26|381
Balance at January 1, 2018 1,250,600  1,00D,000 (166,244) {5879) 48,504 2,126,381
Camprehensive Income for the year:
Net loss for the year - - - - {213,339) (213,339)
Actuarial (losses) on defincd benefits
obligation 17 - - . {6,347) - (6347
Changes in fair value of available-for-
sale investments 7 - - (5,063) 2 - (5,063)
Amount transferred 10 stalement of
income 7 - - (23,808 - - {23,808)
Share of other comprehensive incoms
of investments in associates 6 - - 391 - - 391
Total comprehensive loss for the year
atiribotable to sharsholders - - {32 4B0) 6,347y (213,39 (252,166)
Zakat 20 - - - - {(865994) {63,994)
Balance 2t December 3 D18 1,250,000 1,000,000 {198,724) {12,226) (230,929 1,808,221

The accompanying notes [ 40 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.
-10-



THE COMPANY FOR CODPERATIVE INSURANCE
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2018

2018 2017
Notes SAR'0O0D
Operating activities:
Net Joss for the year 213,339) (146,544)
Adjustments For non-cash items:
Depreciation of property and equipment 4 22,313 23728
Ameortization of intangible gssets 5 7,488 4,830
Lass on salc of property and equipment 4 - 114
Allowance for doubtful debts 12 20,235 35,545
Gain on sale of investments {23,808) {12,247
Share of profil of associates, net 6 {29.698) {14,738)
Provision for end-of-service indempities 17 16,466 26,731
) — {(200,343) (82,631)
Prepaid expenses and others assets {69,719) 83,880
Deferred excess of oss premiums 2,518 1,679
Deferred policy acquisition costs 40,139 47310
Reinsurcrs’ share of gross outstanding claims (1,350,532) 405,123
Reinsurers’ share of claims incurred but not reported 199,370 152,855)
Reinsurers’ share of uneamed premiums 46,286 37,313
Receivables, net 719,456 33,765
Reinsurers’ balances payable {113,202) 28,963
Gress uncamed premiums {584,951) 15,015
Uniearned commission income (14,362) (778)
Gross outstanding ¢lgims 896,392 2287
Incurred but not reported clrims reserve (16,086) 253,541
Premium deflelency reserve {129,976) 137,248
Reserve for takafil activities {1,886) {2,326)
Clains payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities 221,450 {115,639)
{355,446) 943,779
End-of-service indemmnities paid (8,779} (12,045}
Surplus paid (o policyholders during the year - (76,651)
Net cash (used in)/ from operating activities (364,215} 855,083
Investing activities:
Statutory depasit B {25,000)
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale investments 7 5,471,917 4,633,067
Purchase of availabie-for-salc investments 7 {3,860,901) (5,716,543)
Proceeds from mangrity of murabeha deposits ] 82,035 -
Placement in mudarabah/ murabaha deposits 2 {2,233,125) (82,015)
Accrued investment income 158,093 (158,093)
Dividends received from invesiments in associates 6 30,441 26,969
Purchase of property and equipment 4 (5,495 {4,487)
Purchese of intangible essets 5 (3,468) {12,483)
Net eash from/ (used in} investing activities 629,497 (1,338,605)
Financing activitics:
Dividends paid 15 3} (499,640)
Zakat paid duriog the ycar (62,232} (20,784}
Net cash used in fAnancing activities (62,235) {520,424)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 203,037 (1,003,946)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the vear 14 1,397,203 2,401,149
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 14 1,600,240 1,397,203
Non-cash supplamental Information:
Changes in fair value for available-for-sale investments ? (32,871) (105,131)
Share of other comprehensive income of associates 6 kL] 1,040
Loss on re-measurements of defined benefit obligation 17 (6,347} {5,879
The accompatiiying notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 131, 2018

GENERAL

The Company for Cooperative Insurance {the “Company”) is & Saudi joint stack Company established in Riyadh, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia by
Royal Decree Number M{5 and incorporated on January 18, 1986 corresponding to Jumade Al-Awal 8, 1406H under Commercial Ragistration
Ne. 1610061695, The Company’s head office is located on Thumamah Road (At Takhassusi) ArRabi District, P.O. Box 86959, Riyadh 11632,
Kingdom of Sawdi Arabia.

The purpose of the Company is to transact cooperative insurance uperations and all related activities including reinsurance and agency activities.
[te principal lines of business include medical, motor, marine, fire, engineering, encrgy, aviation, takaful and casualty insurance.

On July 31, 2003 comresponding to Jumada Thani Z, 1424H the Law on the Supervision of Cooperative Insurance Compenies (*Insurancs Law™)
was promulgated by Rayal Decres Number (M/732). On December 1, 2004 corresponding to Shawwal 18, 1425H, the Saudi Arabian Monetary
Authority (“SAMA™) as the principal authority responsible for the application and administration of the Insurance Law and its implementing
rcgulations, granted the Company a license to iransact insurance activities in Saudi Arabia.

The Company conduels the busingss and advances funds to the insurance operations as required. On January 20, 2004 the Company amended its
Anticles of Aszotigtion giving authority to the Board of Directors te determine the dispasition of the surplus from insurance operations.

On Merch 20, 2004, the Board of Dirgclors approved the distribution of the surplus from insurance operations in accordance with the
Implementing Regulations issued by SAMA, whereby the sharcholders of the Company are to receive 90% of the annuoal surplus from insurance
operations and the policyholders are to receive the remaining 10%0. Any deficit arising on insursnce operalions is transferred 1o the sharcholders'
eperations in full.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
a)  Statement of compliance

These financigl statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Stendards (IFRSs) as modified by Saudi
Arabian Monetary Autbority (SAMA) for the accounting of zakat and income tax, which requires, adoption of all IFRSs as issued by the
Internationsl Accounting Standards Board (*1ASB") cxcept far the application of International Accounting Standard ([AS) [2 - “Income Taxes™
and [FRIC 21 - “Levies" so far as these relate 1o zakat and income tax. As per the SAMA Circulzr no. 3810000745 19 dated April 11, 2017 and
subsequent amendments through certain clarifications relating to the sccounting for zakat and income tax {“SAMA Circular™), the zakat and
income tax are to be accrued an a quarterly basis through equity under retained earnings.

The financial statement is preparcd under the going concern basis and the historical cost convention, except for the measurement at fair value of
available for sale invesiments, investment in associates which is accounted for under the equity method and end of service benefits based on
rctuarial valuation techniques. The Compeny’s statement of financial position is not presented using & current/non-current classification,
However, the following balances would generzlly be classified as non-curment: statutory deposit, accrued income on statutory deposlt, property
and equipment, imangible assets, invesiment property, investments in associales, available for sale investments, reserve for discontinued
operations, end-vf-servire indemnities and retem payable on stajutory deposit. All other financial stetement line items would generally be
tlassified as current.

The Company presents ifs statement of financial position in order of liquidity. As required by the Saudi Arnbian [nsurance Reguletions, the
Company maintains separate boaks of accounts for Insurance Operations and Sharehokders’ Operations and presents the financial statemants
accordingly (Note 30). Assels, liabilities, revenues and expenses clearly attributable 1o either activity are recorded in the respective accounts.
The basis of allocalion of expenses from joint opcrations is determined and approved by the management and the Board of Directors.

The statement of Fnancial position, statements of income, comprehensive income and cash flows of the insurance operations and sharcholders
operaiians which are presented in Note 30 of the financlal statements have been provided as supplementary financial informatian 1o comply with
the requirements of the guidelines issued by SAMA implementing regulations and is not required under TFRSs. SAMA fmplementing regufations
requires the clear segregation of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the insurance operations and the sharcholders operations.
Accordingly, the statements of financial pasition, statements of income, comprehensive income and cash flows prepared for the insorance
operations and shareholders operations as referred to above, reflect only the assets, liabilities, intome, expenses and comprehensive gains or
losses af the respective aperations.

In preparing the Company-leve] financial statements in complisnce with IFRS, the balances and teansactions of the insurance operations are
amalgamated and combined with those of ihe shareholders’ operations. Inter-operetion balances, (ransactions and unrcaiised gains or losses, iff
any, are eliminated in fult during amalgamation. The accounting policies adopted For the insurance operations and sharehalders operations are
uniform for like transactions and ¢vents in similer circumstances. ’
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THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION {Continued)

b} Basis of measurement

These financial statements are prepared under (he historical cos! basis except for the measurement at fair value of available-for-sele investments,
investment in associates which is accounted for under the equity method and end of scrvice benefits based on actuarial valuation technicues.

£} Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements have been presented in Saudi Arabian Riyals (SAR), which is also the functional currency of the Company. All
financil information presented in Saudi Arabian Riyal has been rounded to the nearest theusand, excepl where otherwise indicated.

o) Fiscal year
The Compeny follows a fiscal year ending December 31,
¢} Critical accounting Judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial staternents requires the use of estimates and judgments that affect the reported ancunts of assets and liabilities
and disclasure of contingent assets and liabilities ai the datc of the financial statements and the reported amounits of revenucs and cxpenses during
the reporting year. Although thess estimates and judgments are based on manwgement's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual
results ultimately may differ from those estimates.

Estimales and judgments are continually evaluated and based an historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be rezsonable under the circumstances.

The estimate and judgments used by managemenl in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those followed in the
preparation of the Company's annusl financlal statements for the year ended Deccmber 31, 2017.

Following are the accounting judgments and estimates that are critical in preparation of these financial siaicments:
i) The ultimate lisbility arising from claims made under insurance contracts

The cstimation of the ultimate liability arising from ¢laims made under insurance contyacts is the Company's most critical accounting estimeie.
There ate saveral sources of uncenainty that need to be considered in the estimate of the liability that the Company will ultimately pay for such
claims. Estinmates are made at the end of the reporting period both for the expected ultimate cost of ¢laim reported and for the expected ultimate
costs of claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR™). Liabilities for unpaid reported claims arc estimated using the inpul of assessments for
individual cases reported to the Company. At the cnd of cach reporting period, prior year claims estimates are reassessed for adequacy and
changes are made io the provision.

The provision for elaims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is an estimation of claims which are expected to be reported subsequent 1o the date of
staternent of financial position, for whick the insured event has occumrad priet to the date of statement of fiminciul position. The primary techrique
adopted by management in estimating the cost of notificd and IBNR claims, is that of using the past claims settlement trends to predict future
claims seitlement trends. A range of methods such as Chaln Ladder Method, Bornhuetter-Fergusan Method and Expected Loss Rarie Method
are used by the actuaries to determine these provisions. Actuary had also used a sagmentatlon approach including anslyzing cost per member per
year for medical line of buginess. Underlying these methads are a number of explicit or implicit assumptions relating to the expected scttlement
amount and settlement patterns of claims.

ii) Impeirment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Company determines that available-for-sale financial essels arc impnired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the availabte-for-sale Financial assets below its cost. The determination ¢Fwhat is significant or prolooged requires judgment. For equity
and mutual funds, & period of 12 months or longer is considered to be prolonged and a decline of 30% from original cost is considered significant
a5 per Company policy. In making this judgment, the Company also evaluates among other factars, the normal volatility in share price, the
financial healik of the investee, industry and sectar performance, changes in technolagy, and operational and financing cash flows.

ifiy Impairment of reccivables

A provision for impairment of receivables is established when there 1s abjective cvidence that the Company will not be able 1o collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probebility that the debtor will enter
bankeuptey or financial reorganization, and default or delinquency in payments are censidered indicetors that the receivable is impeired.
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THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 131, 2018

BASIS OF PREPARATION {Coniinucd)

iv) Fair velue of financial instruments

Fair values of available-for-sale investments are based on quoted prices far marketable securities of estimated fair valves. The fair valuc of
commission-hearing irems iz estimated based on discounted cash flows using commission for items with similar terms and risk characteristics.

The fair value of financial instrumenis whare no active market exists or where quoted prices are not otherwise available are determined by using
valuation techniques, In these cases the fair values are estimated from observablr data in respect of similer financial instruments or using modets.
Where marke! observable fnputs are not available. they are estimated based on appropriafc assumptions. Where valuatian techniques (for
example, madels) are used to determine fair values, they are validated and periodically reviewed. All models are calibrated to ensure that outputs
reflect actual data and comparative market prices. To the &xtent practical, models usc only observabie dafa; however, areas such as credit risk
{both own credit risk and countaeparty risk), volatilities and correlations require management o make gstimates, Please refer fair value of
financlal Ingtruments disclosure in note 28.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those usad in the preparatlon of the
previous financial year, except for the adoption of the fellowing new standards and other amendments to existing standards mentioned below
which have had no significant financial impact on the financial statements af the Company on the current year of prior year and is expected to
have no significant effect in future years:

IERS [5 - “Revenue from Coniracts with Customers™ spplicable from [ January 2018 presents a five-step model to deterrnine when to
recognize rovenue, und at what amount. The application of this standard could have a significant impact ot how and when revenue is
recognized {except for conirects that are within the scope of the standards on lcases, insurance contracts and financial instruments), with
new estimates and judgments, and the possibility of revenue recognition being accelerated or deferred, However, the application af this new
standard has no material impect oo the Company's financial statements.

Stendards issued but not yet effective

In gddition fo the above mentioned standards, the following standards and interpretatians that arc issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of
issuance of the Company’s financial statentents are disciosed below. The Company intends o adopt these standards, if applicable, when they
become effective. Further, the Company has chusen not to zarly adopt the amendments and revisions 10 tha Intemnational Financial Reporting
Standards which have besr published and are mandalory for compliance for the Company with effect from future detes.

IFRS @ - “Financial Instruments”, (including amendments to IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts) in July 2014, the IASB published IFRS &
Finzncial Instruments which will replace JAS 32 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The standard incorporates new
classification and meesurements requirements for financial assets, the introduction of an expected credit logs impairment model which will
replace the incurred Joss model of IAS 39, and new hedge accounting requirements. Under IFRS 9, all financial assets will be measured at
either amartissd cost or fair value. The basis of classification will depend on the business mode! and the contrectual cash flow characteristics
of the financial assets. The standard retains most of IAS 39° requirements for Gnancial liabilities except for thase designated at fair value
through profit or loss wherehy that part of the fair value changes anributable ta own credit is to be recognised in other comprehensive
income mstead of the income statement. The hedge accounting requirements are more closely aligned with risk management practices and
follow & mare principle based approach.

In Septermber 2016, the IASE published amendments to IFRS 4 to address issues arising from the different cffcctive dates of IFRS 9 and
the new insurance ¢ontracts standard (IFRS 17),

The amendments intraduce two llernative options of applying IFRS 9 for entities issuing contracts within the scope of IFRS 4: atempaorary
exemption; and an overlay approach. The temporary exemption enables eligible entities to defer the implementation date of IFRS 9 for
armual petieds beginning before 1 January 2022 and continue to apply 1AS 39 0 financial assets and lisbilitics. An entity may apply the
tempatary exemption from [FRS 9 if: (i) it hus not previously applied any version of IFRS ¢, other than only the requirements for the
presentation of gains and losses on financial liabllities designated as FVPL: and {ii) its activities are predominantly connected with insurence
on its annual reparting date that immediately precedes 1 Aprit 2016,

The averlay approach allows an entity applying [FRS 9 to reclassify between profit or loss and other comprehensive income an amount that
results in the profit or loss af the end of the reporting periad for certain designated financial assets being the samc as if an entity had applied
IAS 39 to these designated financial assets.

An entity can apply the temporary cxemption from iFRS 9 for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, An eniity may start
applying the overlay approach swhen it applics IFRS § for the first time.
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THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Contlnued)

During 2018, the Company performed an assessment of the amendments and reached the conclusion that its activities are predominantly
connected with insurance. The Company intends tn apply the tempotary exemption from IFRS 3 and, therefore, continue to spply IAS 3¢
to hts financial assels and ligbilitics in its reporting period starting on 1 January 2018 and through the year ended 31 Degember 2018.

The Company is eligible and have chosen to apply the temporary exemption under the amendments to IFRS 4. The impact of ihe adoption
of IFRS 9 on the Company’s financial information will, to a large cxtent, have to take info account the interaction with the farthcoming
insurance contracts standard. [ASB through its amendments 1o IFRS 4 issued in September 2016 had ellowed temporary exemption if a
Company meets the following criterie;
8} the Company has not previously appled any version of [FES 9; and
b} its aclivitics arc predominantly connected with insurance that is defined as total percentage of carrying amount of insurance
liabilities is preater than 2D% aof its total liabilitics.

Durlng 2018, the Company performed & high-level impact assessment of IFRS 9. This preliminary assessment is based on corrently available
information and may be subject to changes arfsing from further detaited analyscs or additional reasonable and supportable information being
made available ta the Company in the future. Overall, the Company expects no significant impact on its statement of financisl position and
equity, except for the effect of applying the impaimment requircments of [FES 9. However, the impact of the same is not expected to be
significant. Further, the Company believes that IFRS 9 would have an impact on the classification of financial instruments required 10 be
mandatorily mentioned a1 fair value i.e invesiments classified under available for sale investments in Mate 7. Credit quality of the financial
instruments are disclosed in Wote 31{d) to the finencial statements. At present it is not possible o provids reasanable estimate of the effects
of application of this new standard as the Company is yet to perform a detailed review.

IFRS 16 - “L.eases™, applicabls for the period beginning on or afier | January 2019, The new standard eliminates the cursent dual accounting
mode] for lessees under [AS t7, which distinguishes betwzen on-halance sheet finance leases and offbaiance sheel operating leases, Instead,
IFRS 16 propeses on-balance sheet accounting model. The Corapany hes decided not to early adopt this ney siandard, Management helieves
that the impact of this new standard is nac expected lo be significant duc to Jimited lease contracts,

IFRS 17 - “Insurance Contracis™, applicable for the period beginning on or after [ January 2022, and will supersede 1FRS 4 “[nsurance
Contracts”. Earlier adoption permitted if both IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” and IFRS % “Financial Instruments™ have
also been applied. The Company expecls = material impact on measurement and disclosure of insurance and reinsurance that will affect
both the statement of income and the statement of financial position. The Company has decided not to sarly adopt this new standard,

The significant accounting policies used in preparing these financiel statements are set oul below:

a)  Revenue Recognition
Recognition of prembum and commission revenue

Premiums and commission are recorded in the ststement of income  insurance operations and accumulated surplus based on straight line method
over the insurance policy coverage period except for long term polfices (consiruction and engineering) and marine carga. Unearned premiums
gre calcnlated on a straight line method aver the insurance policy coversge except for:

- Last three months premium at a reporting dale is considered as uncarned in respect of marine cargo;

. Pre-defined calculation for Engineering class of business for risks undertaken that extend beyond g single year. In accordance with this
calculation, lower premiums are camed in the first year which graduslly increases towards the end of the tenure of the policy; and

Uncarned premiums represent the portion of premiums written relating to the unexpired period of coverage. The change in the provision for
uneamed premium is taken to the statement of income in the same order that revenue is écognised over the period of risk.

Invesiment income

Investment income on debi instrumnents classified under available-for-gale investments and murabaha deposits are accounted for on an effective
interest basis.

Dividend income

Dividend income on equity instruments classtfied under available-foresale investments is recognized when the right to receive payment is
established.
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THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continoed)

b) Imsurznce contracts

c}  Claims

Claims consist of amounts pryeble to policyhojders and third portics and related foss adjustment expenses, net of salvage and other recoveries,
and is charged to “Changes in otitstanding claims and reserves” in the statement of income wg incurred,

Gross outstanding claims eomprise the gross estimated cost of clajms incurned but not settied at the statement of financial position date together
with related claims handling casts, whether reported by the insured or not, Provisions for reported claims not paid as of the statement of financial
position date are made on the basis of individual case estimates. In addition, & provision based an menagement's judgment and the Company's
prior experience is maintained for the cost of settling claims incurred but not reporied including refated claims handling costs at the statement of
finencigl position date,

The outstanding claims are shown on a gross basis and the related share of the reinsurers is shown separately. Further, the Company daes not
discount itg tiability for unpaid claims as substantially all claims are expected to be paid within one year of the statement of financial position
date,

d}  Salvage and subrogation reimbursement

Snme insurance contracts permit the Company to sail {usunlly damaged) assets acquired in seliling a claim (for example, saivage). The
Company may also have the right o pursue third partics for payment of some or all costs (for example, subrogation),

Estimaies of salvage recoveries are included as an allowance in the measurement of the outstanding claims liabilfty. The allowance is the
amount that can reasonably be recovered fom the disposal of the assct,

Subrogation reimbursements are aiso considered as an allowance in the measurement of the vuistanding claims liability. The allowance is the
assessment of the amount that can be recovered from the third party.

¢) Reinsurance

Reinsurance is distributed betwean treaty, facultative, stop loss and excess of loss refnsurance conlracts. An asset or liability is recorded in the
statement of financiel position - insurancs operations” representing payments due from relnsurers, the share of [osses recovarable from
refnsurars and premiums due fo reinsurers. Amounts receivable ffom reinsurance is estimated in a manner consistent with the claim lishility
associnted with the insured parties. Reinsurance assets or lisbilities are derccognised when the coniractual rights are extinguished or expire or
when the contract is transferred to another party.

Ceded refnsurance arrangements do not relieve the Campany from its obligations to policybolders. Premiums and claims on assumed
reinsurance are recognised as income and expenses in the same manner as they would be if the rsinsurance were considered direct business,
taking into scceunt the product classification of the reinsured business,

f)  Deferred policy acqaisition costy

Commissions and othet costs directly related to the acquisition and rencwal of insurance cantracts are deferred and amortized over the terms
of the insurance contracts to which they relate, similar to premiums earned. All ather aequisition costs are tecognized as an expense when

incurred. Amortization is recarded in the “Policy acquisition costs” in the statement of income,
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THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUD! JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contlnued)}

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future sconomic henefits embodied in the asset are accounted
for hy changing the amartization period and are treated as n change in accounting estimate,

An impatrment review Is performed at sach reporting date or more frequently when an indication of impairment asises. [f the assumptions
relating 1o future profitability of these policies arc nat vealized, the amortization of these costs eould be accelerated and this may also require
additional impairment write-offs in the statement of income. Deferred policy acquisition costs are alse considered in the liability adequacy test
at gach reporting date.

2]  Liability adequacy test

At each statement of financial position dafe, lability adequacy tests arc performed to ensure the adequacy of the insurance contracts liabilities
net of related deferred policy acquisition costs. In performing these tests management uses curent best estimaies of fulure sontractual cash
flows and claims handling and administration expenses. Any deficiency in the carrying amounts is immediately charged to the statement of
income by establishing a provision for losses arising from lisbility adequacy tests accordingly.

h)  Receivables

Premiums and reinsurance balances receivable are recoghised when due and measured on initial vecognition at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, Premiums receivable arc stated al gross writtcn premiums receivable from insurance contracts, less an
allowance for any uncollcctible amounts, The carrying value of receivable is reviewed for impairment and whenever events or circumstances
indicate that the camying amaunt may not be recoverable, the impairment loss is reconded in “Other general and administrative expenses” in
the statement of income. Receivable balances arc derecognised when the Company no longer conirols the contrachual rights that comprise the
receivable balance, which is normally the case when the receivable balance is s0ld, or all the cash flows attributable to the balance are passed
through 10 an independent third party, Receivables disclosed in note 12 fall under the scope of IFRS 4 “Insurance contracts”.

i)  Available-for-cale investments

Avgilable-for-sale finznelal assets are those nonedesivative financial assets that are seither classified as held for trading or held lo maturity ar
loans and receivables, nar are designated at fair value through profit or loss, Such investments are initially recorded at cost, baing the fair value
of the consideration given including transaction costs dirzctly attributable to the acquisition of the invesiment and subsequenily measured at
fair value. Cumufative changes in fair value of such investments are recognized in other comprehensive income in the statement of
comprehensive income. Realized gains or losscs on salc of these investmenis are reported in the related statements of income.

Dividend, commission income and foreign cumrency gain/loss on available-for-sale invesiments are recognized in the related staremants of
income as part of the net investment income / loss,

Any significant or prelonged decline in fair value of available-for-sale investments is adjusted for and reported in the statement of income, as
impairment charges.

Fair values of available-far-sale investmenis are hased on quoted prices for marketable securities or estimated fair values based on the latest
available net assets value of the mutual fund. The fair velue of commission-bearing ilems i3 estimated based on discounted cash flows using
commission for items with similar terms and risk characterisiics. The Campany also considers appropriate assumptions for credit spread,

Far unqueted investments, fair value is determined by reference to the market value of a similar investment or where the fair values cannot be
derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques. The input to these models is teken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not fessible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair valucs.

) lnvestmeals in associates

An associate I an entity In which the Compeny has significant influence (but not control), over financial and operating policies and which is
neither e subsidiary nor a joint venture,

Investments in associates are carried in the statement of financial position at cost, pius post acquisition changes in the Company”s share of net
assets of the associate, less any impairment in the value of individual investments.
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THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOURTING POLICIES (Continued)

When the company”s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds ifs interest in the assoclate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Company does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive abligations or madc payments on behalf of $he
sssociate,

Af each reponting dare, the Company determines whether thers is objective evidence that ihe invesiment in assocfate is impaired. If there is
such cvidence, the Company calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associals and its
carrying value, and then recognizes the loss in the statement of income, as the case may be.

k)  De-recognition of financial instruments

The derecognition of a financial instrument takes place when the Company ne longer controls the contractual rights that comprise the financial
instrument, which is normally the case when the insirument is sold, ot all the cash flows attributable 1o the instrument are passed through to
an independent third party and the Company has also transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

I  Offetting

Financial assels and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position only when there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention 1o settle on a net basis, or io realize the asscts and
settle the liability simultansously. Income and expense is not offset unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretatian.

m} Trade date accounting

Al regular way purchases and sales of finuncial assets are recognized / derecognized on the trade date (i.e. the date that the Company commits
10 purchase or sell the assels). Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financlal assets thal require seftlement of assets within
the fime frame generally established by regulation or conventlon in the market place.

n)  Impairment of flnancisl agsets

The Company assesses, ai each reporting dare, whether there is abjective evidence that a financial assci or a group of financial assels is
impaired. An impairment exists if onc of more events thal has eccurred since the initial recognition of the asset {an incurred ‘loss ¢vent’), has
&0 impact on the estimated fiture cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial asscis that can be refiably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include:

- Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debor;
A breach of conlract, such as a defaull or delinquency in payments;
1t becoming probable that the issuer or debtor will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization;
- The disappearance of an active market for that financial assel because of financial difficultics; or
. Observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flow flom a group of financial assets sincs the
initial recognirion of those assets, although the decrease cannal yet be identified with the individual financial asgets in the Company,
including:
» adverse changes in the payment status of issuers or deblors in the Company; or
e mational ar Tocal economie canditions at the country of the issuers that correlate with defaults on the assets.

If there is ohjective evidence that an impairment 10ss on 8 financial asset exists, the impairment is dstermined as follows:

- For equities and fund carricd af fair value, impairment is the significant or prolong decline in the fair value of the financial assst.
- For debt securities and sukuks carried al amortized cost, impairment s based on estimated future cash flows that are discounted at the
crigingf effective commission mie.

For available-for-sale financial assets, the Company asscsses al each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that an investment or
a group of investments i3 impaired.
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THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale, the Company assesses individually whether there is an objective avidence of
impairment. Objective evidence may include indications that the borrower Is experiencing significant flnancial difficulty, default or
delinquency in special commission income or principal payments, the probability that it will enter bankruptey or other finzneial recrganization
and where observable data indicates that there is @ measurable decrease [n the cstimated future cash fiows, such as changes in economic
conditions that correlate with defaults, However, the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amartized cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the statement of income,
I, in  subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument increasss and the increase can be objectively related to credit event occusring
after the impairment loss was recognized in the staterneat of income, the impairment loss is reversed through the statement of income.

For equity investoients held as available-for-sale, 2 significant or prolonged decling in fiir valuc below its cost represents objective evidence
of impaitment, The impairment loss cannot be reversed through statement of income as long as the asset continues to be recognlzed i.e. any
increzse in fair value afler impairmen! has been tecorded can only be recognised in other comprehensive income. On derecognition, any
curnulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is included in the statement of income for the year. The
determination of what is ‘significant” or ‘prolonged’ requires judgement A period of 12 months or longer is considered to be prolonged and a
decline of 30% from otlginal cost is considered significant as per Company policy. In meking this judgement, the Company evaluates, amang
other factors, the duration or extent 1o which the fair vatus of an investment is less than its cost.

In making an assessment of whether an investment in debl instrument is impaired, the Company considers the factors such as market's
assessment of creditworthiess as reflacted in the bond yields, rating agencies' assessment of creditworthiness, country’s ability 1o access the
capital markets for new debt issuance and probability of debt being restructured, resulting in holders suffering losses through voluntary ot
mandatory debt forgiveness, The amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortised
cost and the cugrent fair valug, less any impatrment loss on thal investment previously recognised in the statement of income.

o}  Property and eguipment

Property and equipment ar¢ stated al cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. Subsequent costs are included in the
asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separale assel, a3 appropriale, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow 10 the Campany and $he cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the statement of income - insurance aperations and accumulated surplus during the financial period in which they are incumed. Land is not
depreciated. The cost of other items of property and equipment is depreciaied on the straight line method 1o allozate the cost over estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Years
Buiklings 40-48
Futniture and fixmres 10
Computer equipment 4
Vehicles 4

The assets” residual values and usefiul lives are reviewed at¢ach reporting date and adjusted iF eppropriate. The carrying vahies of these assets
are reviewed for impairment when event or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying valus may not be recoverable. If any such
indication exisis and where the camrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets ane written down 10 their recoverable

amount,

Gains and [osses on disposals are determined by comparing the praceeds with the carrying amount and are tncluded in “Cther income, net”
in the slatement of incotme.

P [ntangible assets

Scparately acquired intangible assets are shawn at hislotical cost. They have & finite useful life and are subsequent carried a1 cost less
accumulaled amorization and impairment losses. The Company amortises intangible assels with a limited useful life using straight-line
method over the following period:

Year
Saftware licenses 4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

g) [Invesiment property

Investment properiy represents [and that is held for capital appreciation purposcs. Land is stated at cost less recognized impairment [oss, iF
any.

ri  Mudarabs/ Murabaha deposiis

Mudaraba/ Murabaha deposits, with original maturity of more than three months, having fived ar determinable payments and fixed maturity
that the Company has the positive inlention and ahility to hold to maturity are classified as held to maturity. Held to maturity investments are
initially recognised gt Fair value including dircet and incremental transaction costs and suhsequently measured at amartised cost, less provision
for impairment in value. Amortised cosi is calculated by taking inte account any discount of premium on acquisition using an effective yield
basis. Any gain or [oss on such investments is recognised in the stefement of income when the investment is derceognised or impaired.

s}  Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred o the Company as lessee are clagsified as
operating feascs. Payments made under operaling leascs {nct of any incentives received from the [essor) are charged to statement of income
with in operating expenses on a straight-line basix over the periad of the lease.

t}y  Impairment of non-financial assets

Assels that have an indefinile useful life  for example, land - are not subject to depreciation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying emount
may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its nescoverable amount, The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

uw}  Employees’ end-of-service beneflts

The Company operates an end of service benefit plan for its employees based on the prevailing Saudi Labor Laws, Accruals are made at the
presend velue of cxpected future payments in respect of services provided by the employees up 1o the end of 1he reporting period using the
prejectad unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departurcs and periods
of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period of high-quality corparate bonds
with terms and currencies that match, as closely as passibie, the estimated futurs cash outflows. The benefit payments obligationis discharged
as and when it falls due. Remeasurements {actuarial grins/ losses) as & result of experience adjustments end chenges in actuarial assomplions
are recognised in statement of comprehensive inconte,

v}  Provisions, uccrued expenses and ather liabilitjes

Provisions are recognised when the Company has an obligation (legal or construclive)} arising from past events, and the cosis to seitle the
ebligation are both probeble and may be measured reliably. Provisions are not recognised for future operating Iogses. Liabillties ave recopnised
far amounts o be paid in the future for goods or services received, whethee billed by the supplier or not.

w) Zsakat

The Company is subject to zakal in accordance with the regulations of the General Authority of Zaket and Tax (“GAZT"). Zakat is computed
on the Saudi shareholders™ share of equity or net income using the basic defined under the Zakay regulations. Zakat is accrued on a quarterly
basis and charge zakat directly into retained samings in the statement of changes in equity.

x} Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to Ihe Company’s sharcholders is recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company's sharsholders.

¥y  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and balances with banks including murabaha deposits with less than three months maturity
from the date of acquisition.
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THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued]
z)  Cash flow statement

The Company’s main cash flows are from insurance operations which are classified as cash flow from operafing activities. Cash flaws
genersted fram investing and financing activities are classified accardingly.,

an] Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in Saudi Riyals at the cxchange rate prevailing at the date of the fransaction. Monetary assets
and Tiabilities denamlnased in foreign currencies are retranslated to Saudi Riyals at the rate of exchange prevailing at the statement of financial
position date. All differences are taken to the statements of income. Mon-manetary items that are measured in ferms of histarical cost in a
fareign currency are translated nsing the exchange rate as at the datc af the initial transaction and are not subsequentiy restated. Foreign
exchange gains or losses on available-for-sele investments are recognized in “Other income, net” in the siatement of income. As lhe
Company's foreign surrency transactions are primarily in US dallars, foreign exchange gaing and losses are nof significant.

bh) Operating segments

A segment is g distinguishatle component of the Company that is engaged in providing preducls or services {a business segment), which is
subject to risk and rewards that are different from those of other segments, For management purposcs, the Company is arganized inta business
units based on thelr products and services and has four reportable segments as follows:

Medical - coverage for health insurance,

Molar insurance.

Property and Casualty - coverage for property, enginecring, marine, avialion, tnergy and general accidents insurance.

Manafelh  third perty liability insurance for foreign vehicles and the profit of this segment is shared with other insurance companies.
Shareholders’ ssgment - reporting sharcholder opecations of the Company. Income eamed from invesiments is the only revenue
generating activily. Cerlain direct operating expenses and other overhead expenses are aliocated to this segment on an appropriate
basis. The surplus ar loss from the insurance aperatians is allocated to this segment on & apprapriaie bagis,

L I I I

Operating segments are reporied in a manner conslstent with the internal reparting provided to the chlef operating deeision-maker. The chief
operating decisinn-maker, who is responsible for allacating resources and assessing performance of the aperating segments, has been identified
a3 the chief executive officet thar makes strategic decisions. No inter-segment transsctions occurred during the year.

cc} Manafeth shared agreemend

As described in note 23, the Manafeth sharcd agrecwtent is an insurance paoling amangement related to motor insurers in KSA. This is an
arrangement between 25 insurance companies of KSA where the entity is the leader in providing Manafcth {Insurance coverage for motor
vehicles entering in KSA). The entity does not act es an agent on behalf of the other insurers in sgreement. Therefore the Company accounts
for manafeth shared agreement by recording the premiums under the gross written premium and claims under gross claims paid. The relcvant
assets and liabilities are also recorded as & separate aperafing segment along with the essers and liabilities of other aperating segments. The
distribution of shate of incame ta other parlicipating insurancs compeaniss is recorded 25 an expense in “Manafeth insurance shere distribution™
in the stalement of income.

ddy Legal reserve

In accardance with the Company’s Articles of Assoriation, the Company shall allocate 20% of its net income fram sharcholders operations
cach year 16 the legal reserve until it has built up & reserve equal to the share capital. The reserve is not available far distribution.

ee) Fair values

The fuir value of financial assels are based on quoted prices far marletable securities or estimated air values, The fiair value of commission-
bearing items is estimatad based on discounted cash fow using commission for ifems with similar terms and risk characteristics.

For financial assets where there is no active market, fair value is determined by reference to the market value of u similur finencial assets or
where the fait values cannot be derived from active market, they are determined using a variety of valuation technigues. The inputs of this
madels is takett Fam observable market where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
values.
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THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

PROFERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Furnftureand  Computer Total Total
Land Buildings fixtures gquipment Vehicles 2018 2017
SAR'000

Cost:
January | 53,036 195,928 65,620 130,633 456 449,671 446,187
Additions 34 9,191 9495 4,487
Disposals - - - - - - {1,003)
December 31 53,036 194,926 65,924 139,824 456 459,166 449,671
Atcumulsted Depreciztion:
January | 19,976 34,877 95,523 244 170,620 147,781
Charge for the year 4,851 2,370 15018 7 22,313 23,728
Disposals - - - - . (839
December 31 - 24,837 57,247 110,538 321 192,931 170,620
Net book value
December 21, 2018 33,036 175,099 8,677 29,286 135 266,233
December 31, 2017 53,036 176,950 14,743 35,110 212 - 279,051
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B.

THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2018
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2018 2017
SAR'00D

Cost:
January | 12483
Additions 3,468 12,453
December 31 15,951 12,483
Accumulated Amortisation:
January 1 4,830
Charge for the year 7,488 4,830
December 31 12,318 4,830
Net book valuc 3633 7,653
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

2018 2017

SAR'000

[psurencg Operaticns
Balance, Janvary | 7,021 12,691
Share of profit! (loss) (Note 24} 500 {5.670)
Balance, December 31 7921 7,021
Shareholders Operations
Balance, January 1 88447 4,958
Share of profit 28,798 19418
Dividends received {30,441) (26,969)
[Inrealized gain on invesrmenis 91 1,040
Balance, December 31 87,195 88,447
Total Investments in associates 95,116 95,468

The Company’s interest in associgie, which is unquoted, is as follows along with summarized financial information:
i) Insurance Operations:

Najm Insurance Scrvices

Couniry of 9% Interest
As of Incorporation Assgels Liabilitics Revenue Profil Held
SAR'0DO
December 31, 2018 + Szudi Arabia 357979 128,411 389,613 15,989 345%
September 30, 2017 * Saudi Arabia 292,010 88,494 260,479 28,063 3.45%

* Based on latest available management accounts.

The Company has significant influence over the financial and operating policy decision of the associate by way af representation on its board
of directors,
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THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

& INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

W} Sharcholders Operations:

a) United Insurance Company

Couniry of Ya Interest
Asol Incarporation Assets Ligbilities Revenue Profit Held
SAR'000
Decemhber 31, 2018 * Bahrain 265,546 132,783 90,455 213,701 0%
Novembet 30, 2017 * Bahrain 250,989 111,082 20,864 29,502 50%
® Based on latest available management Accounts.
b) Waseel Application Services Provider
Country of %o [nterest
Asof [ncorporation Assets Liabilities Revenue Profit Held
SAR 000

December 31,2018 * Saudi Arahia £7,000 10,590 318,500 £ 45%
Novemher 30, 2017 * Saudi Arabia 81,744 R,330 33,895 16,973 45%
* Bazed on latest available management actaunts.
7. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
i) Insurance operations:
Available-for-sale investments of the insurence operations comprise the following:

2018 2017

SARDIH
Ingurence Opgrations
Loce! funds 94,549 371,365
Local fixed income invesiments 330,726 281,860
Regionalf forcign funds 96,858 2291921
Regional/ foreign fixed income investments 84,718 .
Funds with portfolio manager 18,059 -
Foreign equity - 15,284
Total 1,234,907 2,960,430
ar erations

Local funds ans,026 108,645
Loca! fixed income investments 146,913 100,000
Regional/ foreign funds® 905,872 2,156,134
Regionsl/ foreign fixed incvome investments 01644 .
Funds with portfolic manager 10,768 -
Total 1,670,223 2,564,779
Total avaitable-for-sale investments 2,303,130 5,525,200

As gt December 11, 2018 the Company invesled in Shraiah Notes amounting 1o SAR 2.3 billion, The Shraiah Notes are issued by a special
pueppse vehicle “SPV™ eswblished in Cayman Islands. The administrator of these Sherish Notes is a Company registered in Dubal
International Financial Center in Dubai. The underlying lnvestments of Shatiah Notes include mutual funds, privale equity funds and fixed
income portfolias. The Jegel ownership of these underlying investments is rot with the Company, however, the Company is the ultimate
beneficial owser of Ihe underlying investments while having contro] over the Shariah Motes and nnderlying investments. The custody of the
underlying invesiments is in the custody eccount of the SPV or is nominee entity opened with fund and pertfolio managers.

+ This includes investment in foreign Runds emaunting fo SR 306 million invested through Discretionary Partfolio Management agrecment
with Saudi hased anthorised persons registered with CMA.
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THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

7. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS {Continued)

Mavements in availakle-for-sale investments are as follows:

2018 2017
Quoted Ungquoted Quoted Unquoted
sceurities securities Total securities seourities Tolal
SAR'000
Insurance gperations
Balance, January [ 41,245 1,919,185 2,960,430 402,628 2,752,958 3,155,586
Purchases - 1,784,785 1,784,785 43,806 1,453,478 1,497,284
Disposals {42,932} (3.436,511) {3,479,443) (402,628} {1,213,533) (1,616,161)
Changes in fair value of
invesiments 1,687 (32552} (30,86%) {2561} {13,718) {16,279
Balance, December 31 - 1,234,907 1,234,907 41,245 2,919,183 2.960,43Q
Sharebolders® aperations
Balance, January ! 39340 1525439 2,564,779 58,065 1,320,966 1,379,011
Purchases - 2,076,116 1,076,116 40,007 4,179,252 4,219,259
Disposals (40,007} {2,952,467) (2,952,474} (56,48D) (2.950,426) {3,016,906)
Changes in fair value of
investments 567 21,135 21,602 7,748 (24,353) {16,605)
Balance, December 31 - 1670223 1,670,113 39,340 2,523,439 2,564,770
Total - 2,905,130 2,905,430 80,583 5,444,624 3,528,209
The movement of changes in fair value of investments is as follows:
2018 2017
SAR'000
Insurance operations
Change in fair value (30,865) (76,279)
Net amount 1ransferred to statement of income 32,764 {13,255}
1,899 (89,534}
reh rs’
Change in fair value 21,802 {16,605)
Net amount transferred 1o statement of income {56,572} 1,008
(34,770) {15.597)
Total {32,871} ! 105,131 )

The cumulative unrealised loss in falr value of available for sale investments amounts to SR 198,724 thousend (3| December 2D17: gain
SR 166,244 thousand).
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THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

3. MUDARABA/MURABAHA DEPOSITS

The deposits are held with banks and financial institution registered with Capital Market Authority in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. These
deposits are predominarely in Mudaraba structures, These depasits ere denominated in US Dolfars and have an original maturity of more
than three months te one year and yicld on average financiel incomes at rates 4.08% (2017: 2.25%).

Tiwe movements in deposits during the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, are as fallows:

2018 2017
SAR'HO0
Lasurance Operatiops
Balance, December 31 - .
Placed during the year 1,387,500 -
Balance, December 31 1,387 500 -
Sharcholders Operglions
Balance, December 31 82,035 -
Placed during the year 851,625 82,035
Matured during the vear (82135}
Balance, Decentber 31 831,625 §2,035
Total 1,238,135 82,035
3. PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER ASSETS
2018 2017
SARO0D
Advances o medical service praviders and others 196,909 125,240
Prepaid expensas 39,559 39,150
Other assels 24,620 . 263979
261,088 161,369

10. MOVEMENTS IN DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS, UNEARNED COMMISSION INCOME, UNEARNED
FREMIUMS AND OUTSTANDING CLAIMS

a)} Deferred policy acquisition costs

2018 017
SAR'000
Balance, January 1 170,790 218100
Inturred during the year 350402 443,462
Amortized during the vear {390,541} (492,772)
Balance, December 1 130,651 1701790
b) Unearned commission income
2018 2017
SAR'00D
Balance, January | 331,661 54,439
Commission received during the year 91,301 112,990
Commission carmned during the vear (111,663) {113,768)
Balance, December 31 39299 53,661
¢) Unearned premiums
2018 2017
Reinsurers’ Reinsurers
Gross share Net Cross share Net
SAR'D0D
Balanoe, January 1 4,405,244 {591,125) 3,514,119 4,350,220 {553.811 3836416
Premiems written during the year 7841245  (1,098,103) 6,543,142 3,406,669 (1,091,407} 7,315,262
Premiums eamed during the year __ {8.226,196) [,144389 (7,081,807} {8,391.654) 1,054,005  (7,337,559)
Balance, Decetaber 31 3,820,293 (544,839) 3,275,454 4,405,244 (591,125) 3,814,119
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THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
{A SAUDI JOINT STCCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

16. MOVEMENTS IN DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS, UNEARNED COMMISSION INCOME, UNEARNED
PREMIUMS AND OUTSTANDING CLAIMS {(Continued)

d) Ousstanding claims and reserves

2018 2017
Reinsurers Reinsurers
Gross share Net Grass __ share Net
SAR'0DD

Balance, January 1 4,212,281 (1,766484) 2,445,797 1592698 (L118,754F 1473944
Claims paid (7,819,527) 847,028  (6,972,499) (6,590,256) 348,379  (5,841,677)
Claims incurred 8,569,857  (1,998,190) 6,571,667 7308830  (496,30%) 6,813,530
Balance, December 31 4962611  (2,917,646) _ 2,044.965 4,212,281 {1,766,484)  2,445.797
Quistanding claims 3,330,828  (2,725809) 605,019 2,483,435 (1,375,277 1,108,158
Salvage and subrogation {53.672) - {59,672} (108,671} - (108,671}
Gross outstanding claims 3271186 (2,725809) 545,347 2,374,764 (1,375,277} 909,487
Incurred but not reported claims and

other reserves 1,684,183 {191,837) 1,492,346 1,700,269 (391,207} 1,309,062
Premium deficiency reserve 7,272 - 7372 137,248 - 137,243
Balance, December 31 4.962.611 {2,917.646) 2,044,363 4,212,281 {I,’?G&iﬂfl} é445,797

There arc scveral sources of uncertainty that need to be considered in the estimate of the liability that the Company will ultimately pay for
such claints, The management and external actuary had made a detailed agsessment of technical reserves and the verious parameters in the
valuation of technical fiabilities.

As gt December 31, 2018, based an the recommendations of external actuary, management had recorded technical reserves (Gross outstanding
claims and reserves) which amounted to SAR 4.9 billion (2017: SAR 4.2 billion), Significant ponien of reseeves relales to medical line of
business. As at December 31, 2018 the Company booked a significant outstanding claim amounting to SAR 1.4 billion with & reinsurance
share of cutstanding claim at 99% relating to property and ¢asualty line of business.

11, REINSURERS® SHARE OF OUTSTANDING CLAIMS, NET
Reinsuress' share of ourstanding claims comprize net amounts due from the following:

2018 2017

_SARQ00
Reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities 2923, 16 1,767,968
Impairment provision {6,070} {1,484)
2,917,646 1,766,484

Substantially all of the amounts due from reinsurers are expected ta be received within twelve months of the date of the statement of financial
position. Reinsurers share of outstanding claims are calculated in proportion to the related risk distribution pattem._ Reinsurance arrangements
are made with counterparties with sound credit ratings under Standard and Poor's ratings methodology and ratings as per other reputable
BEENCiCS.

Amounts due from reinsurers relating to claims slready paid by the Company arc included in receivables, net (Note 12).
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DECEMBER 31,2018

12. RECEIVABLES,NET
Receivables comprise net amounis due from the following:

2018 2017

SAR'000
Policyholders 776456 1,200,264
Brokers and agemis 157,943 008,273
Retated parties (Note 27) 55,506 155.600
1,891,905 2,264,137
Receivables from raingurery 62,517 110,677
Administrative service plan 23,108 22,159
1,677,527 2,396,983
Provision for doubtfut receivables (159,340) {139.305)
Receivables, net 1,517,987 2,257,678

Mavement in provision for daubtful debts during the year was a3 loligws:

2018 2017

SAR'G00
Ralance, January 1 139,305 103,760
Provision for the year 20,235 35,545
Balance, Deoember 31 159,540 139,305

As at Decerber 31, the ageing of receivables is as follows:

Neither | Past due but not impaired ] Past due and impaired |

past duc Less Mare
nor than M 3 -—-60 61-90 91 -T80 181-360  than 360
Total _impaired days days days days days days
SAR'00G
2018
Premium and reinsurance receivables
- Policyholders' 7B, 456 571,378 9273 M812 17,270 34,066 63,544 38,113
- Brokers and sgents 757,943 439,035 54301 28208 101,593 81,644 35,962 17,200
- Due from related parties 55,506 34,289 7566 5,152 2% 2,950 3752 1,403
- Receivable from reinsirers 62,517 - 5063 13,2172 5523 16,613 15,460 6,284
- Administrative service plan 13,005 - 9821 - - - - 13,234
Total 1677527 045702 ___ 86,124 _Su4d 134987 135273 L8718 76284,
Neither | _Pasidur but mot mpateed |___ Pastdue and impaired___|
jast due Less Mors
nor than 30 31-60 61-90 91-180 181-360  chan 360
Total __impaired days duys days days days days
SAR™N0
2017
Premium 2nd reinsurance receivahles
- Policyholders’ 1,200,264 778,254 29,719 15,883 242345 32,213 48,870 32975
- Brokers and agents 008,273 564,225 (00,220 34,690 19,607 35,669 126,285 27,576
- Due from related partios 155,600 17,314 128,266 891 i88 2,285 3418 12398
- Receivable from reinsurers 110,677 - 25,397 43,057 8,939 16,083 1,022 16,79
- Administrative service plan 22.169 - 1899 352 | 3764 - - 13,284
Total 2,396,983 1,355,793 285‘20 1 1IRD4E 27$ §43 82250 179‘_59_6 93,252

The Company only enters into insyrance and reinsurance coniracts with tecagnized, creditworthy third parties. 1 is the Company’s policy
that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In additian, receivables are monitored on
an ongoing basis in order to reduce the Company’s exposure 1o bad debts.

Receivables comprise a large number of customers mainly within the Kingdort of Saudi Arabia and reinsurance campanics mainly outside
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Receivables include an amount of SAR 166 million (2017: SAR 221 million) due in foreign currencics, mainly
in US dollars. The Company's terms of business require amounts to be paid within 30 io %) deys of the date of the transaction. Amrangements
with reinsurers normally require settiement within a certain agreed period The five largest customers accounts for 28% {December 31, 2017
18%) of the premiums recefvable a3 at December 31, 2018,
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THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

13.

STATUTORY DEPOSIT

in compliance with Article 58 of the Ingurance Implementing Regulations of SAMA, the Company has deposited 18 percent of its share
capital, amounting to SAR 125 million (Decemher 31, 2017: SAR 125 million), in & bank designated by SAMA. The statutory deposit
is maintained with the National Commercial Bank end can be withdrawn only with the consent of SAMA.

14, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2018 2017
SAR'0OD0
nhee igns
Mudaraba deposils 210,000 -
Murabaha deposits - 200,133
Total 1,117,258 1,115,144
Sharcholders Gocrations
Mudaraba deposits 400,000 .
Murahaha deposits - 100,000
Banks balances and cash 82,382 182,059
Total 482,981 282,059
Tetal cash and cash equivalents 1,600,240 1,397,203
Mudaraba deposits ere maintained with banks and financial institutions and have a maturity of three months or less from the date of
acquisition. These earn commission ar an average raie of 3.99% per ennum as at December 31, 2018 (20617: 1.2% per annvm).
Bank balances and cash includes call account balance of SAR 65 millign {December 31, 20417; SAR 188 million}, Both bank balances
and mudaraba deposits (including off-balance sheet exposures) are placed with counterparties with sound credit mtings under Standasd
and Poor's and Moody's ratings methodalogy.
15.  INSURANCE OPERATIONS’ SURPLUS AND DIVIDENDS DECLARED

The insurance operations’ invests its surplus funds in invesiments as dfsclosed in Notes 7 and 8, Changes in the fair valoe of available-
for-sale investments at Deverber 31, 2018 are not considerad as part of the net surplus available for distribution to palicyholders. At the

time such investments are sold or gains and losses are realized, they will be included in the stateient of income - insurance operations
and accumulated surplus.

Dividends daglsred

On February 15, 2017, comesponding to Jumada A)-Awal 18, [438H the Company’s Board of Directors propased ta pay cash dividend
for the year ended Decamber 31, 2016 of SAR 5 per share amounting to SAR 500 million to its shareholders.

Further on February 15, 2017, comesponding 10 Jumada Al-Awal 18, 1438H the Company's Board of Directors proposed a bonus issue
of 25 million shares of SAR 10 each, amounting to SAR 250 million to its shareholders.

The proposcd dividend has heen spproved by the shareholders ot the General Assermbly resting.



THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

16. CLAIMS PAYARLE, ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

2018 2017
SAR’00D

Payables 10 policyholders 833,110 577,233
Payable - General Authority of Zaket and Tax 365,462 369,015
Accrued expenses 167,568 123,65%
Matketing representative commissions 41,682 14,626
Manafeth share of profit distribution payable 56,939 $3.335
Provision lor leave éncashment 13,341 12,365
Employees’ savings plen 26,851 25.3%
Other liabilities 7449 26,080
1513102 1,291,652

17. EMPLOYEE END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

The Company operates an end of service benefit plan for its employees based on the prevailing Saudi Labor Laws. Accruals are made in
accordance with the ctuarial valuation under projected unit ceedit mathod while the benefit payments obligation is discharged as and when
it falls due.

The amounts recognized in the statement of financiz] positton and mavement in the obligation during the year based on its present value
are 85 follows:

17.1 The amounts recognized in the stetement of financial position and movement In the obligation during the year based on its
present value are as follows:

2018 2017
SAR'000
Present value of defined benefit obligation 133,276 119,242

Fair value of plan assets -

17.2 Movement of defincd benefit obligation

2018 2017

SAR'UNY
Opening balance 119,242 98,677
Charge to statement of income 16,466 26,73
Charge to statentent of comprehensive incante 6,347 5,879
Payment of benefits during the year {8,779 [12,04%)
Closing balance 133,276 119,242

173 Reconciliation of present valus of defined benefit abligation

2018 2017

SAR'00
Present value of defined benefit obligation as a1 January 1 119,242 98.677
Current service cosis 12,690 22,129
Financial costs 3,776 4,602
Actoarial [ogs from experience adjustments 6,347 5,819
Benefits paid during the year (8,779} (12,045}
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at December 31 113,276 118,242

174 Principal actyarinl essumptions

The following range of significant actuarial assumptions was used by the Company for the valuation of post-employment benfit liability-

2018 2017
Valuation discount rate 3% 4.5%
Expectcd rate of increase in sslary level acyoss different age bands 0.5% - 6% 4.5% - B.8%
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17.

EMPELOYEE END OF SERVICE BENEFITS (Continued)

17.5 Sensitivity analysls of actuarial assumptions

‘The impect of changes in sensitivities on present value of defined benefif obligation is as follows:

2018 2017
_SAR 000
Impact on defined benefit

vhligation
Valuation diseount rate
= Increase by 0.5% (4,597 (4,004}
- Decrease by 0.5% 4911 4376
Expecied rate of increase in salary level across different age bands
- Increase by 0.5% 4,107 4,326
- Decrease by 0.5% {4,458} (4,086}

(8. RESERVE FOR DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

19.

The reserve for discontinued aperations comprise the following in relalion to one of the Company’s divistons which was discontinued
during 1998:

2018 2017

SAR 'O
Outstanding claims 1,425 1,425
Reserve for losses (96 196
Totel 1,621 1,621

CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT TABLE

The following refiects the cumulative incurred claims, including boih claims notified and incurred but not reported for each
successive accident year at ach statement of financial position date, together with the cumulative paymenis to date, The development
of insurance liabilities provides a measure of the Company's ability to estimate the ultimate vaiue of the claims.

The Cotnpany aims to maintain adequate reserves in respect of its insnrance business in order to protect against adverse future claims
experience ard developments. The IBNR estimate perfaing 1o claims liability for the periods beginning from 2015 onwards whose
¢laim expetiehce hes not been fully developed.

Claims triangulation analysis is by accident years spanning a number of financial years.
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19. CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT TABLE (Continued)}

Claims development table gross of reinsurance:

2018
W03 &
Accident year Esrlier 214 2015 2016 2017 2018 Total
SAR '000

Estimatc of ultimate claims
cost:

Al the end of accident year 17,754,607 3669909 4,861,126 3,004,460 5,842,642 TA21,498

One year later 18,395,367 4,120,395 5,580,651 6,045,645 7.068,784

Two years later 18,358,637 4,153,516 5,615,040 6,161,713

Three years later 18,335,212 4,129,605 5,792,120

Four years later 18,179,149 4,046,050

Five years later 17,989,834
Current estimate of cumulative

claimns 17,989,834 4,046,050 %,792,120 6,161,715 7,065,784 7,423,498 48479001
Cumulative payments 1o date {17,898,3%) (3,949,883) (5,604,378} {5.998,251)  (6,715,694) (4,981,571} (45,148,173
Liability recognized in statement

of financial position 91,438 95,157 187,742 163,464 350,090 2,441,927 3,330,828
Sglvape and subrapation {59,672)
[ncurred but not reported claims 12676 3,096 6,648 38,308 212,178 1411281 1,684,183
Premivm deficiency reserve 1272
Quistanding claims and reserves 4,962,511

207
2012 &
Accldent year Ezrdier 2013 2014 2015 2016 m7 Tatal
SAR ‘000

Estimate of ultimate claims
cost:

Al the end of accideni year 10,965,384 4,917,107 3,665,909 4,862,126 5,004,460 5,842,642

One year later 12,837,500 5,596,818 4,120,395 5,580,651 6,045,645

Twa years laler 12,798,549 5,522.532 4,153,516 5,615,040

Three years later 12,836,105 5,511,004 4,129,605

Faur years leter 12,823,308 5,511,828

Five years later 12,667,321
Current estimate of cumutative

claims 12,667,321 5,511,823 4,129,605 5615040 6,045,645 5842642 39812081
Cumulative payments to date (12,485,859)  (5,399.079) _(3,920.770)  (5,151,135) (5,675,4200  (4,687.383) (37,328,646)
Liability recognlzed in statement

of financial posilion 181,462 112,149 199,835 463,901 370,225 1,155,259 2483435
Salvage and subrogation {108,671)
Incurred but nat reparted claims - 5,049 5,683 102,387 18,323 1,404,827 1,700,269
Fremium deficiency reserve 137,248
Outstanding elaims and reserves 4,212,281
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19. CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT TABLE {Continued}

Clalms development table net of reinsusance:

2018
2013 &
Accident year Earller 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Total
SAR ‘000 "

Estimate of ultimate clabes
coati

At the ead of sccident year 12,866,989 ),206,828 3,662,092 4,468,422 5,444,158 5,219,686

One year later 13,512,609 3,7113334 4,288,552 8413773 6,521,116

Tweo years later 13,530,403 3,736,380 4,341,976 5,615,128

Three years later 13,850,546 3,738,266 4,342,816

Four years later 13,537,120 3,738,447

Five years later 13,517,360
Current ertimate of cumulative

claims 13,517,360 3,735,447 4,341,816 5,618,128 6,521,216 5219.686 38,954,633
Curaulative payments ig date (13,467,091} (3,705,316) 4,295,489 8 567 6,449 683 4,874,198)  (38,34%
Liability recognized in stalement

of financial position 20,269 30,131 47,527 60,268 7150 345491 605019
Salvage and subrogation (53,672}
Incurred but not reported claims 12312 3,481 5,655 8133 244,275 1,227,390 1,492,346
Premium deficiency reserve 1272
Qutstanding <laims and reserves 2,044,965

2017
012 &
_ Accidentyear | FEalier 2003 2014 2018 2016 2017 Total
SAR '000

Extimste of ulifmate claims
cokt:

At the end of accident year 7915808 3,594,854 3,206,828 3,662,092 4,463,422 5,444,158

One year [ater 9,272,133 4,194,333 3,713,334 4,288,552 5,423,713

Two years later 938,276 4,185,312 3,736,380 4,341,976

Three years later 9,345,091 4,187,685 3,738,266

Four years latef 9,162,861 4,189,123

Five years later 9,347,047
Curreni estimate of cumulative

claims 9,347,997 4,189,123 3,738,266 4,341,976 5,423,773 5.444,158 32,485,293
Cumulative paymens tc date 9,293,729} (4,1561,280) {3,702.084) (4,288,010} (5352,648)  (4.579.314) {31,377,135)
Ligbility recognized in stalement

of fingncial position §4,268 27833 35,182 53,966 71,125 854,784 1,108,158
Salvage &nd subrogatian (108,671}
Incurred but not reported claims - 4,726 ,256 24 861 125,252 1,147,967 1,309,062
Premium deficiency reserve 137,248
Dutstanding claims and resecves 2,445,797

-33-



THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2018
20,  ZAKAT
The current year's provision is based on the following:
2018 2017
SAR'DO0
Share capital 1,250,000 1,000,000
Reserves, opening provisions and other adjusiments 1,979,831 1,872,365
Book value of long term assets {403,407} (653,677}
1,826,424 2,218,688
Zekatable loss for the year {186,682) (72,324
Zakat basc 1,639,742 2,146,364
Zakat due ar 2.5% 65,994 53,659

2L

As the zakat base for the year is higher than the zakatable incame, the zakat for the year is caloulated at 2.5% an the zakat base
for the year.

The movement in the zakat provisien for the year was as follows:

2018 2017

SAR'D00
Balance, January | 233,318 200,443
Provided during the year 65,994 53,659
Payments during the year {62,232) {20,784}
Balance, December 31 237,080 233,318

Status of Assessments

The Compeny had flled Zakat returns with ihe General Authority of Zakat and Tax (“GAZT™) for the years from 2005 to 2017
[n rclation to 2005 and 2006, the final assessments had been finalized and the Company had filed an appeal against the
assessments of GAZT which is raiscd to Board of Grievances. During the year GAZT, based an letter dated 6/2/1440H
corresponding to 15/1072018, demanded Zakat amounting to SR 33 million in relation 1o assessment years 2005 and 2008, The
Company responded to GAZT that in relation to 2005 and 2006, the final assessments had been finalized and the Company had
filed an appeal against the assessments of GAZT which is raised 1o Board of Grievances, The Company paid the assessed
amount of SAR 53 million from the zakat provision. In relation to 2007 1o 2013, GAZT had raised assessments and manngement
had subsequently filed their response. Further, GAZT has vet to commence its review for the years 2014 and 2017. Based on
atvice from zakat consuliant, appropiate pravisions have been made and management belicves that Finalization of the above
meationed assessments is nat expecied to have a material impact on the financial statements,

SHARE CAPITAL

The authorized, issued and paid up capital of the Company is SAR 1.25 billion at December 31, 2018 {2017: SAR 1.25 billion)
cansisling of 125 million sheres of SAR 10 each.

Shareholding structure of the Company is &s below. The shareholders of the Company are subject to zakat.

2018
Authorized and lssued | Paid up
No. of Shares SAR00D
Held by the public 66,713,008 667,130 667,130
Public Pension Agency 29,737,685 297,377 297,377
Genersl Organization for Social Insurance 28,549,306 185,493 285,493
125,600,000 1,251,600 1,250,000
2017
Authorized and issued Paid up
No. of Shares ____SARO0D
Held by the public 66,713,009 667,130 667,130
Public Pension Agency 29,737,685 297,377 297377
General Organization (or Social Insurance 28,549,306 285,493 285,493
125.000.000 1,250,000 1,250 000
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22.

LEGAL RESERVE

Iz sccordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and in compliance with Article 70(2)(g) of the Insurance
Implementing Regulations issued by SAMA, the Comparty is required to allocate 20% of its net income for the yeat 16 the legal
reserve until i1 equals the value of share capital. This transfer is only made ai the year end. The legel reserve is not available for
distribution to the shareholders until the liquidation of the Company-

MANAFETH SHARED AGREEMENT

On January 13, 2015 together with 25 related insurance companies, the Company signed the Manafbth shared agrecment relating
to third party liahifity motor insurance which is effective from 1 January 2015. The agreement relates to motor insurance for
vehicles entering the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The sgreement was subsequently renesved for year starting from Fanuary 1, 2018

to December 31, 2018 with 26 relared insurance companies.

T2 main terms of the above mentioned agreement are as follows:

The Company cbiains 15% management fee of the net resuil of the Manafeth portfolio;

»  The Company ohiains 4.25% of Manafeth’s gross premiums written te cover the related indireet expenses; and
- The nct resuit of the Manafoth porifolio after deducting the two above mentioned itemns is due 10 be shared equally by the

Company and its relaled insurers.
4. INVESTMENT INCOME, NET
2018 2017
SAR'D00
[i] tion
Available-for-sale:
« Dividend income 48,7161 163,201
~ Commission income 11,503 53,212
- Realized (lose)/ gain on sale (Note 7) {32,764) [3,25%
- Investment fees - 2449
Ipvestment income, net 27,500 227,219
harebolders ons
Availabla-for-sale:
- Dividend income 129,800 197,899
- Cornmission income 2,92% 11,630
- Realized gain/ {loss) an sale (Note 7) 56,572 (1,008)
- Investment fees - (1,417)
Investment income, net 189,301 207,104
Total Investment income, net 216,801 434,323
35, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXFENSES
2018 1017
SAR'0O0
Salaries and benafits 333,708 308,864
Advertising 9,704 13,831
Insurance, utilities and maintenance 10,976 18,252
Rent 5217 8,064
Depreciation (Note 4) 22,313 23,728
Communications 9,415 11,004
Gifice supplics anl printing 1,131 2,305
Training and education 2857 4,065
Professional fees 11,159 16,217
Indirect cost charge of Manafeth £,119 7,965
License and qther charpes 20,077 20,215
Others 65436 40411
498,112 474,921
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6.

2.

{LOSS)Y EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic and diluted (lags) earnings per share have been caleulated by dividing the {loss) incame for the year by 125 million shares.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
Related partics represent major shareholders, directors and key management personne] of the Company, and companies of which thay
are principal owners and any other cntities controlted, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by them. Pricing policies and terms

of these transactions are approved by the Campany’s manzgement and Board of Directors. The following are the details of the major
related party transactions during fhe year and the related balances at December 31:

Amount of transactions for Balance receivable / (payable)
the year ended As at
SAR000 SAR' M
2018 2017 2018 2017
Maijor sharcholders
Insurance premiums written 45016 28,154 4091 3,631
General Organization for Social Insurance - Other services 149 104 - -
Agsotiates
Insurance premiwm written 33814 9,756 210 (40)
Majm fees paid 38012 46,680 - (7.883)
Waseel fees paid (7,289 17,744 - -
United Insurance Co. fees und vlaims, net 11814 15,016 3,712 3,393
i relale
Insurance premiums written 168,110 480,378 51205 152,009
Rent expenses paid 620 1,020 - (36)
Amount of claims paid to hospitals 63,341 74,421 (12,088} 10,216

1n accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board of Directors is entitled each year to remuneration up to 10% of
the remaining profit from Sharcholders® operations, as defined, based on a decision by the General Assembly.

Remuneration and compensation of BOD Members and Tap Exscutives

The following table shows the annual salarfes, remuneration and allowances ublained by the Board members and five top executives
for the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017:

Top Executives
BOD members BOD members including the CEQ
2018 {Executives) {Non-Executive) and CFQ
SARM000D

Salaries and compensation < - 6,513
Allowances . 750 2,989
Motivational plans - - 1,506
Annual retmuneration - 1,300 503
End of service indcmnities - - ]
Total - 2,050 14,591
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27, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (Continued)

Top Executives

BOD members BOD members including the CEC
2017 {Executives) {Non-Executive) and CFO
SAR'000

Salaries and compensation - E 6,001
Allowances - 858 3,093
Motivational plans . - 447
Annual remuneration . 1,800 3,627
End of service indemnities - . 2,897
Tatal . 2,658 16,065

28. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be reveived ta sell an asset or pald 10 irensfer o limbility in an ordecly transaction in the principal
(or the most advantageous) market batwean market participanis at the measurement date ynder current market conditions regardless
of whether that price is direcily observable or estimated using another valuation technique. The fair values of recognised financiel
instruments are not significantly different from Ihe cantying values included In the financial information. The estimated fair values
of financial instruments are based on quoted markel prices, when available,

Determinntion of fair value and fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the fallowing hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair valuc of financial insiruments:

- Level 1: quoted market price: financial insteuments with quoted unadjusted prices for identical insicuments in active markeds,

- Levet 2: quoted prices in active markels for similar assets and liabilities or other valuation techniques for which all gignificant
inputs are based on observable market data.

- Level 3: valuation techniques for which any significant input is not hased on observable market data.

The following table shows the carrying amount and fair values of financial assets and fingncial liabilities, including their levels in
the fir value hierarchy for financial instruments measured at fait value. [t does not include fair valuc information for financial assets
and financial liabilities not measured a1 fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation to fair value.

SAR'0Y
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Available-for=- sale itvestments
Insursuce gnerationy
Funds . 191,404 - 191,404
Fixed income portfolic . 790,304 . 790,304
Sukuks . - 225,140 225,140
Funds placed with portfolio manager 23053 - - 13,059
28,057 981,708 225,140 1,234,907
har ng
Funds . 609,270 601,629 1,210,899
Fixed income portfolio . 358,536 - 358,856
Sukuks - - 20,000 96,000
Funds placed with partfolio manager 10,768 . - 10,768
10,768 967826 691,629 1670223
Total 38,827 1,949,534 916,769 2I9os!|n

-37-



THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2018
28.  FAIR YALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [Continued)
SAR'000
2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Avallable-for- sale invesimenis
Insurance operations
Mutua] funds 25,961 1,637,325 2,663,286
Equity shares 15,284 - - 15,284
Sukuks - - 281,860 281,860
41,245 - 2.919,185 2,960,430
Mutua! funds 39,340 - 2,425,439 2,464,779
Suknks - - 100,000 100,000
39,340 - 2,525439 2,564 779
Taotal 80,585 . 5444624 5.525209

The valuation of each publicly traded investment classified under level 1 is based upon the closing market price of that stock as of the
valuntion date, less a discount if the security is resiricted. Fair values of privale equity funds and mutual funds classified in Level 3 ane
determlined based on the investees’ latest reported net asscts values as at the datc of stalement of financial position taking inta account
the faie value of underlying investments by the fund. As a1 December 31, 2018 tha Company hes invested an amount of SAR 2.1 billien
from available for sale investments in Shariah Notes issued by Cayman Sharia Vehicle. The underlying investments such ps private
equity funds are classified under Level 3, valued based on latest reparted net assets values and fund administrator reports whereas, the
fair value of Levet 2 fixed income investments and funds are taken from reliable and third party sources including Reuters, Bloomberg,
ete. Fair values of other investments (including sukuks) classified in Level 3 are determined based on discounted cash flows, which
incorporate assumpiions regarding an appropriate credil spread. There wene no transfers in between levels during the year ended

Deccmber 31, 2018 and 2017.

The fair values af statutory deposils, accrusd investment income ox statutory deposit, mudaraba/ murabsha deposits, bank balances
and ofher financial 4ssets in statement of financial position which are carried 2t amortized cost, are not significantly different from the
cartying values included in the financial statements due to the short term nature of balances.

Recoaciliation of recurring fair value measurements categorized within Level 3 of the fair value bierarchy

SARNO)
Toial gain or loas recoguized In
Other
Balance Statemeot of  comprehensive Balance
December 31, 2018 Janagry 1 Purchases ~ Ssles __ income incom December 31
lnsurance operations
Mutual funds 2,637,325 928066  (3,667.918) 16718 56,209 -
Sukwks .. 281860 - (56,720) - A - LU
2,919,185 928066 __ (3724,638) 16318 . 36209 225,140
Shavchoiders opcrations
Mutue! funds 2,424,439 937028 (3,005,602 185,238 39,376 601,629
Sukuks U (.12 2 - (10000) - . 90,000
2,525,439 $37,028  (3,015,602) 185,388 59,376 691,629
Tl Csaagend | LB6S004 (6740240 . 200,706 145,585 916,760
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28.  FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {Continued)

SAR’000
Total gain or loss recagnlzed in
Other
Balance Statement of comprehensive Balance
December 31, 2017 Jauvary 1 Purchascs Sales Income income December 36
losurance gpeetions
Mutual fund 2,448 338 1,546,680 (1,433,630} 162,860 (86,973 2,637,323
Sukuks 304,570 - 22,13 - - 231,860
7,752,958 1,546,680  (1,456,340) 162,860 (86,973) 2,919,185
Shareholdery operations
Mutual fands 890,076 3,823,681  {2,347,066) 21,053 (22,305) 2,425,439
Sukuks 140,000 - - - - 100,000
990,076 3,823,681 {2,347,066) §L,053 {(22,305) 2,525,439
Toml 3,743,034 5370361 (3,803,406) 143,913 (109,278) 5,444,624
The below table shows significant unobservable Inputs used in the valuation of level 3 investments,
Deserintion Fair vaiue as ot Unobservable Range of inputs Rclat{_onshlm of unobservable
P Dec 31, 2018 (SR) Inputs 2018 inputs to fair value
Unquoted 315,140 Assumption of credit +i- 5% Increased risk premium of 10
Bonds  and spreads, males, el bps will have a change in fair
Sukuks value of these debt securities of
SR 1.2 million.
Mutual funds 601,629 Fund  edministrator NA NA
report hased on MAVY
Sensitivity analysls of Level 3 investments
Impact on Exir value Impatt on fair value
due to increase in due to decrease in
December 31, 2018 Sensltivity factor senshiivity factor sensltivity factor
SAR'000 )
ce ti
Sukuks +/~ 10% chanpe in credit spread 12514 (22,514
Sharcholders operptions
Mutual funds +/- 2%achanpe in NAYV per unit 12,033 {12,033
Sukuks +- 10% change in credit spread 9,000 {9,000)
Impaet on fair value Impact on fair value
due to Increase In tdue to decrease in
December 31, 2017 Sensitivity factor sensitivity factor sensitivity factor
SAR'00D
Insgrance Operations
Mutual funds +/- 2% change in NAY per unit 53,684 (53,631)
Sukuks +/- 10% change in credit spread 33,854 {32,190y
Muiusl funds +/~ 3% change in NAY per unit 47,620 [48.446)
Sukuks +- 5% change in credit spread 16,000 {10,000}

-39-



THE COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

29. OPERATING SEGMENTS

Consistent wlth the Company's internal reparting pracess; operating segmen
Company's activities, assels and liahiTities. Information disclosed in the note is

makes,

ts have been sppraved by management in respect of the
based on curcent eeporting 1o the chief operating decisivn

Segment assels do not includc insusance aperalions' property and equipment, prepaymenis and other assets, receivables, net and cash and
cash equivalents. Accordingly, they are included in wnatlocated asseis. Segment liabilities do not include reserve for disecontinued

operations, surplus distribution payable, duc 1o sharcholders operations, reinsurance ba
and piher liabilities and fair value reserve for available-for-sale investments. Accordingly,

These unallocated assets and liabifities (including the related charges for provision
depreciation on the praperty and cquipments) are ot reparted 10 chicf opetating decision

lances payable, claims payuble, accrued expenses
thay are included in unailocated liabilities.

for doubtful debts an premiums receivable and
maker under related segments and are monitared

on & centratized hasis,
)L B
Total Total Shares
FProperty Imsurance holders®
Operating Segments Medical Mator Manafeth & casnally __operations gqpeeations _ ___ Total |
. SAR'O0
)
Gioss premiums wrillen £.756,882 672,110 143,585 1,068,268 7.641,245 7.641,245
Reinsurance ceded - lovnl - (45,160) (45,160} (45,060)
Reinsurance ceded - international (118,447} . (9344060  (1,052,943) 1,052,943}
Fees inpome from takaful 8534 - - 8,534 854
Excess of loss premiums o — {18054) @935 {3598 (4.S8T) 4,357
Net premiums writien 5,646,969 654,056 141,050 85,014 6,527,089 6,527,089
Chiangss in uneamed premiums, net 163,529 34649 919 25,713 65 538,665
Net premiums earned £510,498 1,000,551 143,969 110,736 1,065,754 7,065,754
Reinsurance commissions 2,545 135 - 108,983 111,663 111,663
Other nnderwsiting income - 10,433 - - 10,435 19,435
5,813,043 101121 143.96% 219,718 7,187,852 7,187,852

UNDERWRIT ING COSTS AND

EXFENSES
Grass claims paid and related expenses 6,381,019 647,199 29,035 762,014 7,919,527 7,819,527
Reinsurers' share of claims paid (111,495) 110,297) - (723236 (847,028} B47
et clains paid 6,269,524 637,002 29,035 36,938 6,972,499 63972,499
Changes in outstanding elaims, net (474,225) 11,845 6,284 1,956 {454,140) {454,140)
Changes in incurred but not reponied

claims reseTve, nét 227440 (24,255} (9,546) (10,355 183,284 183,284
Changes in premium deficiency reserves 132,738 - - 2,762 {129,976} (129,976}
Net claims and other benefits incurred £,8940,001 624,592 25,773 31,301 6,571,667 6,571,667
Changes in reserve for takaful activities (1,886) - . (1,886} {1,886}
Policy acquisition cosis 209,798 102,863 3,892 45,986 390,541 390,541
Other underwriting expenses 94,031 3,788 11,158 28,890 137,864 137,864
Manafeth Insurance share _ - - 55,932 - 56,339 56,939
TOTAL UNDERWRITING COSTS

AND EXPENSES 6,191,944 731,245 125,759 106,177 7,158,125 7,155,125
NET UNDERWRITING (LOSSY

INCOME (378,501) 179876 18,210 113,542 32,727 Ky iyl
General and administrative expenscs (493,483} {4629y (498,112
Allowance For doubifil debis (20,235) {20,135)
Dividend and realized gain on

invesiments, net 27500 185,301 216,801
Share of profit from invesiments in

associates, net 200 28,798 29,698
Othet income 15,781 - 25,782
NET (LOSSY INCOME FOR THE {426,809) 713,470 {213,339)
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YEAR

29. OFERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Optrating Segments
REVENUES

Gross premiuems written
Reinsurance ceded - local
Reinsurance ceded - international
Fees income from jakaful
Excess of loss premiums

Net premiums weliten
Chirnges in unearned premiums
Net premiums earned
Reinsurance commissions
Othear underwriting income
TOTAL REVENUES

UNDERWRITING COSTS AND
EXPENSES

Gross claims paid and related expenses

Reinsurers’ share of claims paid

Nt clalms paid

Changes in outstanding <laitns, net

Changes in Incutred bul oot reported
claims reserve, net

Changes in premium deficiency reserves

Net claims and other benefits
ineurred

Changes in reserve for takaful activities

Policy acquisition costs

Onher underwriting cxpenses

Manafeth insurance share

TOTAL UNDERWRITING COSTS
AND EXPENSES

NET UNDERWRITING (LOSS)
INCOME

General and administrative cxpenses

Allowance for doubtful debis

Dividend and reglized gain on
invesiments, net

Share af profit from investments in
associales, net

Qther income

NET (LOSS)Y INCOME FOR THE
YEAR

20107
Total Total Share-
Property &  Insurance holders’
Medical Motor Manafeth casualty operations operations Tatal
SAR'G0D
3,746,778 1,388,860 187,417 1,083,614 8,406,669 8,406,669
- - - (257,097} (257,097) 257,097
{124,052 2 . (710,260} (834,310} (834,310)
5,413 - - - 5,423 5,421
- (22.046) (2,937) (15,392} (40,375) {40,374)
5,628,149 1,366,816 134,480 100,865 7,280,310 7,280,310
(47,749 16,951 12,885 10,210 22,297 22,297
5,580,400 1,413,767 197,365 111,075 7,302,607 7.302,607
1472 4 - 112,292 113,768 113,768
7 15,294 - - 15,301 15,300
3,581,839 1,429.065 197,365 223,367 7.431,676 7,431,676
4,810,218 1,027,406 42,733 809,879 6,690,256 6,696,256
{57,723} (17,917 {1,232} (771,707) (848,579 (R48,379)
4,752,515 1,009,48% 41,501 38,1712 5,841,677 5,841,677
673,396 (37,120) 1,364 (4,852} 632,788 632,788
199,262 {1,566} 468 3,653 201,817 201,817
137,248 - - - 137,248 137,248
5,762,421 970,803 43,333 36,973 6,813,530 6,313,530
{2,326) - - - (2,326} £2,326)
232,268 177,390 32,685 50,429 492,772 492,772
110,358 15,021 16,231 17,808 159,419 159,419
- - 83,335 - 53,335 83.335
6,102,721 1,163.214 175,584 165,211 7,546,730 7,546,730
(520,842) 265,851 2t 781 118,156 (115,054) {115,034}
(470,041) {4,880) {474,921)
(35,545) . (35,545)
227,219 207,104 434,323
(5,670) 19418 13,748
30,905 - 30,505
(368,186) 221,642 (146544}
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29. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Operating Segmenis

Assels

Reinsurer's share of unsamed premiums
Reinsurei”s share of incurred but not reported ¢laims
Reinsurer's shere of sutstanding claims

Deferred excess of loss peemiums

Defecred policy scquisition costs

Investments {including investment property)
Receivables, net

Cagh and cash squivalents

Unallocated assets

Total assets

Liahilirles

Gross unearned preouiums

Gross outstending claims

Incurred but not reported claims reserve
Premium deficiency reserve

Unearnad commission income

Reserve for takaful activities
Reinsurers’ balances payable
Unallocated liahilities

Total lizbilities

Operating Segments

Angets

Rainsurer's share of uneerned premiums

Reinsurer's share of incurred but not reported claims
Reinsurer’s share of ootstanding claims

Deferred excess of loss premiums

Deferred policy acquisition costs

Tnvestments {including investment propesty)
Receivables, net

Cash and cash equivalents

Unallocated ssscls

Total aysets

Liabilities

Gross uncamed premiums

Gross owsianding claims

Incuread but not raported claims reserve
Premium deficicney reserve

Unearned sommission income

Reserve for takaful activitics
Heinsurers’ balances payable
Unallocated liabilities

Total Habilitics

As at Decemher 31, 2018

Tota) Total
Property & [nsurance  Sharcholders'
Medical Motor Manafeth casupkty operations operations Total
SAR'D00
59626 - 485,213 544,839 544,839
25624 - - 166,213 191,837 191,937
24,664 18382 2,000 2,680,763 2,725,809 2,725,809
- 5,123 - 2,652 8,775 8,775
94,026 22520 1,312 12,793 138,651 130,651
1,292,689 1,757,418 3,010,107
1,517,987 1,517,987
1,117,258 482,982 1,600,240
1.918,434 978,879 2897333
203,940 47,025 3312 3,347,634 5,408,299 3,219,279 12637578
2317798 27510 24,063 250,922 3,820,193 3,820,293
282,516 152,625 14,092 1,811,923 327,158 3271156
1,284,346 194,701 13,922 191,214 1,684,183 1,684,183
4,510 - - 2,762 T.272 T.272
3,034 - 36,265 35,299 39,299
8,650 - - 8,690 8,590
94,720 94,720
LEABITT 253567 1895744
4500894 674,836 52,077 3.603,086 10,565,790 253,567 10,819,357
As at Decamber 31, 2D17
Total Total
Property & Imaurance Sharcholders’ )
Medical Motor Manafeth casualty operations aperations Total
SAR 00D
62,900 & - 438,210 591,125 591,125
28,142 14,087 1,141 346,937 191,207 391,207
25,547 19,753 - 1,319,977 1,375,277 1,375,277
: 6,595 4,608 11,293 11,203
99,636 47306 1,822 22,026 170,790 170,750
3,049,051 2,739,580 5,788,631
2,257,678 2,257,678
1,115,144 282,059 1,397,203
476,323 210,782 687,103
215,234 88,647 2063 2,231,843 9,437,888 3,232,431 12,676,309
3,084,610 674,011 26,982 519,641 4,405,244 4,405,244
757,624 142,151 5,208 1,469,181 2.3714,764 2,374,764
1,059.424 233,943 24,609 382,293 1,700,262 1,700,269
137,248 - - - 137,248 137,248
5,346 i - 48,314 53,661 83,661
10,576 - - 10,576 10,576
207,522 207,922
1,408,515 245,729 1,654,244
5,054,828 1,050,106 §7.39% 2519413 10,298,199 245,729 10,543,928
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30, SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

a) Statement of Gaancial position

As at December 31, 2018 As ar Decamber 31, 2017
Insurance Sharehaiders” Insurgnee  Sharebolders’
operations vperations Total aperations aperstions Total
SAR000
ASSETS —
Statutory deposit 125,000 125,000 125,000 125,000
Accrued income on Statutory deposit - 2,254 2,254 1,997 1,99%
Property and equipment, net 266,233 266,233 779,051 . 279,051
Intungible assers 3,633 . 3,633 7,653 7,653
Investment property 9,861 - 9,861 9.861 - 9,361
Investments in associaies 7,921 87,195 95,116 7,021 88,447 05,468
Available for sale investments 1,234,907 1,670,223 2,905,130 2.060,430 2,564,772 5,525,209
Mudaraba/ Murabahe deposits 1,387,500 851,625 2,239,125 82,035 £2,035
Due from/ 1o Shareholder’s operations 1,068,659 (1,066,659) - 773,927 (773,927}
Prepaid cxpenses and other asscts 261,088 261,088 189,619 1,750 191,369
Deferred excess of loss preminms 8,775 8,775 11,293 11,293
Deferred policy acquisilion costs 130,651 130,631 170,790 170,790
Reinsurers' share of gross outstanding claims 2,725.809 2,725,809 1,375,277 1,375,277
Reinsurers' share of incurred but not reported
claims 191,837 - 191,837 391,207 391,207
Reinsurers® share of uneamed premiums 544,839 544,839 591,125 591,125
Receivables, net 1,507,987 - 1,517,987 2,257,678 2,257,678
Accrued investment intome - - 71,739 86,354 158,093
Cash and cash equivalenis 1,117,258 _482.952 1,600,240 1,115,144 282,059 1,397,203
TOTAL ASSETS 10,474,958 2,151,620 12,627,578 10,211,815 2458494 11,670,300
LIABILITIES
Reserve for discontinued operations 1,621 1,621 1,621 - 1,621
End-of-service indemnities 133,276 133,276 119,242 - 119,242
Return payable on statutary deposil 2,254 2,154 1,997 1,997
Claims payable, accrued expenses and other
liabilities 1,505,280 7822 1,503,102 1,287,652 4,000 1,291,652
Reserve for takaful activities 3,690 8,690 10,576 10,576
Girpss outstanding claims 3,271,156 3,271,156 2,374,764 2,374,764
Incurred but not reparted claims csenve 1,684,183 1,684,183 1,701,269 1,700,269
Premium deficiency reserve 7,272 1,272 137,248 - 137,248
Uneamed commission income 39,295 39,299 53,661 - 53,661
Gross uncamned preminms 3,520,293 3,820,293 4,405,244 - 4,405,244
Reinsurers’ balances payable 94,720 94,710 207,922 - 207,922
Dividends payable 6,411 6,411 6414 §414
Zakat - 237,080 237,080 - 233,318 233318
TOTAL LIABILITIES 14,565,790 253,567 10,819,357 10,298,199 245,729 10,543,928
EQUITY
Shate capital . 1,250,000 1,250,000 1,250,000 1,250,000
Legal reserve - 1.000,000 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 1,000,000
Fair value reserve for Investments (78,606) {120,118} {195,724) {80,505} {85,73%) (166,244}
Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation (12,226) {12,226) 5879 {3.679)
Refained earnings - {230,829) {230,829) - 48,504 48,504
TOTAL EQUITY (50,832} 1,899,053 1,808,221 (86,384) 2.212,765 2,126,381
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 10,474,958 2,1524620 12,627,578 10,211,815 2438494 12,670,309
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30. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION {continued)

b Stutement of income

REVENUES

(iross premiums written
Reinsurance premium cedsd
Fees income from tekaful
Excess of [oas preminms

Net premioms wrilten
Changes in unearned premiums, net

Net premiums earned
Reinsurance commissions
Othet underwriling income

Tatal revenues

NDERWRITIN
Chross claims paid

Expenses incurred related 10 claims
Reinsurance share of claims paid
Net claitits and other benefils paid
Changes in outstanding claims, net
Changes in incurred bul not teported claims, net
Changes in premium deficiency reserves
Net claims and other bepefits incurred
Changes in reserves for takaful activities
Policy acquisition eosts
Other underwriting expenses
Manafeth Insurers share
Total underwriting casts and gxpenses

Wet underwriting {loss)! income

General and administrative expenses

Allowance for doubtfi) debs

Dividend 2nd realized gain on invesiments, net
Share of profit from investments In associates, nel

Other income, net

Net {losa ) / income for the year before

appropriation

Met (losa} / Income transferred to sharchalders’

operations

Net income for the year sfter Sharcholders'

upproprigdons

2018 2019
Share- Share-
Inyurance holders' Insurance holders’
aperations operations Total operations operations Total
SAR'00D
7,641,243 7,641,245 1,406,669 8.406,569
(1,098,103} (1,008,103) (1,091,407) (1,091,407}
8,534 £,534 5423 5,423
515537[ {24,587 {40,375) !4]]&75!
6,527,089 6,517,089 7,280,310 7,280,310
538,665 538,665 22,297 23297
7,065,754 7,065,734 7,302,607 7,302,607
111,663 111,663 113,768 113,768
10435 10435 15,301 13301
7313’7,§52 7,187,852 7431676 7,431,676
7,800,323 7400,323 6,672,717 6,672,717
19,204 19,204 17,479 17479
47028 (847,028) (848,579} {848,579)
69372499 6,972,499 3,841,677 5,841,677
(454,040) (454,140} §32,788 632,788
153,284 183,254 200,817 201,317
(129,976} {129,976) 137,248 137,248
6,871,667 6,571,667 6,813,530 6,813,530
{1,886) (1,856} (2,326} {2,326)
390,541 390,541 492,772 492,172
137,864 137,864 159419 159,419
56,932 56,339 £3.333 83,335
7,158,125 ‘1,155,125 7,546,730 7,346,730
32,127 32,727 {115,054} ([15,054)
(493483} {4,619) {498,112) (470,041) (4,820} {474.521)
(20,235} - (20,233) (35,545) - (35,545)
27,500 18%,301 216,80 227,219 207,104 434,323
900 18,798 29,698 {5,670) 19418 13,748
25,782 - 25,752 30,905 - 30,905
(426,309) 213,470 (213,239) (368,186) 221,642 {146, 540)
426800  (426,809) - 368,186 (368,186) .
- (2133%) (213339) . {146,344 (146,549)
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30, SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (continued)

¢) Statement of comprehensive income

Meil income for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Not To be recycled back to statement of Inconre
in subseguent years:

Remeasurements of defined benefit obligalion

To be recycled back to statement of Income in
subsequent years:

Available for sale investments

» Net change in fair value
= Net amounts recycled to statemen! of income

Share of othet comprehensive income of
invesiments in assoriates

Total comprehensive (loss ) / income For the
year

2018 2017
Share- Share
Insurance holders® {nsurance holders'
sperations operations Total operations operations Tatal
SAR'000
- (213,33%) (213,339) {146,544) {146,544}
6,47) - (6,347) {3,879) - (5,879
(30,865) 21302 9,063) (76,279 {16,605) (92,.884)
32,764 {56,572} {23,808) (13,255) 1,008 (12.247)
- 3N kil 1,040 1,040
{4,448) (247,718} {252,166) [95,413) {161,101} (256,514}
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30. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (continued)

dy Statement of cash flows

Operatlng activities:

Net lass for the year

Adjustments for con-cavh itemns:

Appropriation of (surplus) / deficit

Depreciation

Amortizetian of intangible assets

(Gain an sale of property and equipment

Allowance for/{Reversal of) doubeful

debls

Gain/ (loss) on sale of available-for-sale
investments

Share of profit from investments in
associales, net

Provision for end-ofservice indemnities

Changes i operating assets gnd liabilities:
Prepaid expenses and others assels
Dieferred excess of loss premiums
Deferred policy acquisition costs
Reinsurers' share of autstanding claims
Reinsurers’ share of claims incurred but
not

reported
Reinsurcrs’ shere of uncarned premiums
Receivahles, net
Reinsurers' balances payable
Grags unearned premiums
Unearned commission income
Gross oulstanding claims and reserves
Claims incurred but not reported reserves
Premium deficiency reserve
Reserve for takaful activitics
Acerued expenses and other labilities
Due fromy 1o Sharcholdet™s operations

Endof-service indemnities paid

Sutglus paid to policyhelders during the
Year

Net cash (used in)/ from operating
actlvities

2018 2017
Share- Share-
Insurance holders® Insurance holders’
operationy operations Total operations operations Total
SAR'D00

{213,33%) (213,139) (146,544) (L46,544)

(£26,809} 4264809 {368,186} 364,186
22313 - 22313 21,728 23,728
7498 7488 4,830 . 4,830
- 114 - 114
20,235 - 20,235 35545 - 35,545
32,764 (56,572} {23,808) (13,25%) 1,008 {12,247}
(900) (28,798} 29,698) 5,670 {20,458) {14,788}
16,466 - 16,466 26,731 . - .. 26,731
{328,443) 128,100 {200,343} {284,823 202,192 (82,631}
(71,469) 1,750 {69,719) 85,630 (1,750) 83,380
2,518 - 2,518 1,679 1,679
40,1% - 40,139 41310 47,310
(1,350,332) - (1,350,832) 405,125 + 405,125
195,370 - 199,370 (52,855) - (52,855)
46,286 - 46,286 (31.312) - {37,312)
719,456 - 719,456 33,765 . 33,765
(113,202} . {113,202) 28,963 - 28,963
{584,951) . (584,951} [5,015 . 15,015
(14,362) - {14,362} (778} - {778)
896,392 896,392 228,794 - 228,794
(16,086) {16,086) 253,541 . 253,541
(129,976) - {12%,976) 137,248 - 137,248
(1,886} - {1,886) (2.326) - (2,326)
217,628 3822 221,450 {119,639 4,000 (115,639}
426,809 (426,809} - 368,186 (368,186) -
{62,309 (293,137) (355,446) [,107,523 {163,744} 943,775
8,71 - {8,779 {12,045 - (12,045}
. . - {76,65]) - (76,551}
{71,088) (293,137} {364,225) 1,018,827 (163,744) 855,083
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30. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (continued)

d) Statement of cash flows {continued)

[nvesting activities:

Statutory deposit

Proceeds from salc of available-for-sale
nvestmenis

Purchase of available-for-sale investments

Proceeds from Murabaha deposits

Placement in Mudaraba/ Murabaha deposiis

Accrued invesimenlt income

Dividends received fram tnvestments in
associates

Purchase of praperty and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash from! {used in} investing

activities

Financing wctivitics;

Dividends paid

Zakat paid during the year

Due to sharcholders

Net cash {used Ln} from financing
activities

Met change in cash and eash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the
year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year

Non-czeh supplemenial information:

Changes in fair value for avaiiable-for-sale
investments

Share of other comprehensive income of
associgtes

Loss on remeasurements of defined benefit
obligation

1018 2017
Share- Share-
Insarance hatders' Insurance holders’
operations operations Total aperations operations Total
SAR'000
£ . (25,000} {25,000}
3479443 2,592,474 6471917 1.616,161 3,016,906 4,633,067
{1,784,785) (2,927,141) (3,860,901) (1,497,284) (4219,259) (5,716,543}
- 82,035 82,035 - . .
{1,387,500) (851,625) (2,239,125) . (82,035) (82,035)
71,739 85354 158,093 (71,739} (86,334) (158,093}
- 30441 30,441 - 26,962 26969
{2,495} . 9495) {4,487} . (4,487}
(3,468) - (3A68) (13,483) E {12483}
365,934 263,563 529,497 30,168 (1,368.773)  (1,338,605)
- (3 {3 - (499,644) {499,640}
- (62,232) {62,232) - {20,784) {20,784)
(2923,732) WL - (1,313,253) 1,313,353 -
(292,732) 230,497 {62,235) (1,313.253) 792823 1520424}
Ll14 200,923 203,037 {264,258) (739,688) (1,003,946}
1,115,144 132,059 1,397,203 1,379,402 1,021,747 2,401,149
1,117,258 452,982 1:500:240 1115144 282,059 1.397.203
1,899 (34,770) @2,871) {89,534) {15,597} (105,131)
k2 | 3 - 1,040 1,040
(6.347) - (6,347) (3,879) ' (3879
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31, RISK MANAGEMENT
{a) Insurance risk

The risk under an insurance contract is the risk that an insured event will accut ineluding the uncertainty of the amount and fiming of any
resulting claim. The principal risk the Company faces under such contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the carrylng
amoun! of iasurance linbilities. This is influenced by the fequency of claims, severily of cleims, actual benefits paid being greater than
originally estimated and subsequent development of long-term claims.

The variability of risks is improved by diversification of risk of loss to a large portfolio of insurance contracts s 8 more diversified portfolio
i5 less likely to be affected across the board by change in any subset of the portfolio, 88 well as unexpected outcomes. The variability of risks
is atso improved by careful sslection and implementation of underwriting streicgy and guidelines s weil as the use of reinsurance

arrangemenis.

Significant portion of reinsurance business ceded is placed an treaty and faculiative basis with rctention limits vagying by product lines.
Amounts recoverahle from reinsorers are estimated in a manner consistent with the assumptions used for ascertaining the underlying policy
benefits and are presented in the stalement of financial position as reinsurance essets.

Although the Company has reinsurance arrangements, i is nof relieved of its direct obligations 1o its policyholders and thus a credit exposure
exists with respect to reinsurance ceded, to the extent that any reinsurer is unable to mest its obligalions assumed under swh reinsurance
arranpements.

Frequency and severity of clnimy

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several factors like natural disasters, flood, environmental and economical,
atmospheric disturbances, concentration of risks, civil riots ete. The Company manages these risk through the measures described above. The
compary has limited its risk by imposing maximum claim amounts on eertain contracts as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements in order
to limit exposure to catsirophic events (e.g., hurricanes, earthquakes and flood damage). The purpese of these underwriting and reinsurance
strategies is ta limit exposure to caiastrophes based on the Company's risk appetite as dacided by management.

Concentretion of insurance risk
The Company monitors concentration of insurance risks primarily by class of business. The major concentration ligs in medical segment.

The Company also monitors concentration of risk by evaluating multiple risks covered in the same geographical location. For foad or
earthquake risk, a complete ¢ity is classified as a single location. For fire and property risk a particular building end neighboring buildings,
which could be affected by a single claim incident, are considered as a single location. Similarly, for marine risk, multiple risks covered ina
single vessal voyage are considersd as a single risk while assessing concentration of risk. The Company evaluates the concenimation of
expasures 1o individual and cumulative insurance risks and establishes its reinsurance policy to reduce such exposurcs to levels acceptable to
the Company.

Since the Company operates majorly in Sandi Arabia, beuce, all the insurance risks relate to policies written in Saudi Arbla.
Sources of uncertainty in cstimation of future claim payments

The key source of eslimation uncertalnty af the statement of financial position date relates t valuation of outstanding claims, whether reparied
or not, and includes expected claims settlement costs, Considesable judgment by management is requircd in the estimation of amounts doe 1o
policyholders arising from claims made under insurance contracts, Such estimates are necessarily hased on assumptions aboul severat factors
involving varying and possibly significant degrees af judgment and uncenginty and sctual results may differ from management's estimates
resulting in future changes in estimated liabilities. Qualitative judgments are used to assess the cxient to which past trends may not apply in
the futurs, for example one-ofY accurrence, changes in market factors such as public attitude to claiming and economic conditians, Judgment
is further used 1o assess the exieni to which externai factors such as judicial decisions and government legislation affect the eslimates,

In particular, estimates have 1o be made both for the expected ultimale cost of elaims reported ac the statement of financial position date and
for the cxpected ultimate cost of claims incurred but nat reported {(IBNR) at the statemenl of financiel position date.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued}
Process used to decide on assumptions

The process used to determine the assumptions for caleulating the outstanding claim reserve is intended 10 result in neuteal reasonable estimates
of the most likely or expected outcome, The naturc of the busibess makes it very difficult to predict with ceriainty the likely autcome of any
partlcular claim and the ultimate cost of notified claims. Each notified claim is assessed on a scparate, case by case basis with due regard to
claim circumstances, information aveitable from surveyors and historical evidence of the size of similar claims. Casc cstimates are reviewed
regularly and are updated as and when new information is available.

(a) Imsuranee risk (Continued)

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject 1o a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified
to the Company, in which case information about the claim event is svailable. The estimation process takes [nip account the past claims
reporting pattern and details of reinsurance programs.

The premium liabilities have been determined such that the tolal premium lishility provisions (unearned premium reserve and premivm
deficiency reserve in result of liability adequacy test) would be sufficient to service the future expected cirims and expenses likely to oceur on
the unexpired policies as at the statement of financial position date. The expected future liability is determined using estimates and assumptions
biaged on the experience during 1he sxplred perlod of the contracts and expeciations of future cvents that are believed i be reasonable.

Sensitivity analysis

The Comspany believes that the claim liabilitics under irsurance contracts outstanding at the year end are adequate. However, these amounts
are niot certain and actual payments may differ from the claims liabilities provided in the financial stalements. The insurance clafm liabilities
are sensitive to the various assumptions. It has not been possible 10 quantify the sensitivity of specific variable such as legislative changes or
uncertainty in the estitmation process.

A hypathetical 10% change in fhe claim ratio, net of reinsurance, would impact income from insurance operations as fbllows;
Surplus from insurance operations

Impact of change in claim ratio by + - 10% 2018 2017
SAR'000

Medical 152,108 116,853

Motor I54%6 21,895

Manafeth 2,601 2,347

Property and casualty 16,892 3,170

207,097 144,263

{b) Relnsurance risk

in order 1o minimize financial exposure arising frum large claims, the Company, in the normal course of business, cnters into agreements wilh
other parties for reinsurance purpases.

To minimize its expesure to significant losscs from reinsurer insolvencies, the Company evalnates the financial condition of i1s reinsurers and
monitors concentrations of credit risk arising fram similar peographic regions, sctivities or cconomic characteristics of the reinsurers.

Reinsurers are selectad using the following parameters and guidelines set by the Company’s Board of Directors and Reinsurance Committee.
The criteria may be summarized as folloves:

- Minimum accepiable credit rating by recognized rating agencics (£.g. S&F) that is not lower than BEB or equivalant
- Reputation of particulor reinsurance companies
Existing or past business relationship with the reinsurer.

Furthermore, the finencial strength and managerial and technical expertise as well as historical perfoonance of the reinsurers, wherever
applicable, are tharoughly reviewed by the Company and agreed to pre-sel requirements of the Company's Baard of Directors and Reinsurance
Committee before approving them for exchange of refnsurance husiness. As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, there is no significant
coneentration of rinsurance balances.

Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relisve the Company from its obligations to policyholders and as 4 result the Company remains Hable for
the portion of ouistanding claims reinsured to the cxtent that the reinsurer falls to meet the obligations under the reinsurance agreements.
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

{c) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrunient may fluctuate as a result of changes in market commission rales or the market
price of securities or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculatlve activities, supply and demand for securities and liquidity in the
market,

The Board of Directors of the Company ensure that the averall market risk exposure is maintained at prudani [evels and is consistent with the
avsilable capital. While the Board gives a strategic direction and goals, risk management funclion related to market risk is mainly the
responsibility of Investment Commintee team. The team prepares forecasts showing the effects of various possible changes 1 market conditions
related to risk exposures. This risk is being mitigated through the proper selection of securities. Company maintains diversified portfolio and
performs regular monitoring of developments in related markets. In addition, the key factors that affect stock end sukuk market movements
are monitered, including analysis of the operational and financial performance of investees.

Market risk comprises of three types of rigk: currency risk, commission rate risk and other price risk.
Currency Risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of 2 financial instrument will fluciuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The currency exposures of available-for-sale investments are set out below:

losurwgee Qperstions 2018 2017
SAR’00D
Saudi Acabian Riyals and GCC currencies 226,013 612,300
US Dolars 2,396,394 2,291,921
Qther currencies - 56,209
2,622 407 2,960,430
Shartholders Operations 1018 2017
SAR'"D00
Saudi Arabian Riyals and GCC currencies 305,652 Q.o
US Dollars 2,216,156 2,080,531
Euros - -
Onher currencies - 377171
2,521,848 2,564,779

The Corpeny’s transactions are principally in Saudi Arabian Riyals and IS Dollar. Managemen! monilors the flucluations in currency exchange
rates and acts accordingly and believes that the foreign currency risk is not significant,

Commission Rate Risk

The Company invests in securities and has deposits that are subject to commission rate risk. Commission rate risk 1o the Company Is the rigk
of changes in commission rates reducing the overall retum on its fixed commission rate bearing securities. The Commission rale risk is
limited by monltoring changes in commission rates and by investing in fleating rate instruments.
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RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)
{¢} Market rlsk (Continued)

An increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interes! yields would result in a change in the loss for the year of SAR 3.6 million (2017:
SAR 1.8 million).

The commission and non-commission bearing investmenis of the Company and their maturitics as at Decemnber 31, 2018 and 2017 are as
follows:

Less than | year More than 1 year  Non-rommission beaving Total
Insuranice Operationa SARYI00
2018
Mudsaraba/ Muorabaha deposits 1,387.500 * - 1,387,500
Available for sale investments . 1015444 219,463 1,234.907
Cash and cash equivalent 210,000 - 907,258 1,117,258
Total 1,597,500 1,045,444 1,126,721 3,739,665
2017
Available for sale investments 329,570 2,630,860 2,960,430
Cash and cash eguivalent 200,133 - 915,011 1,113,144
Total 200,133 329,570 3,545,871 4.075.574
Shareholders Operatians
W18
Mudaraba/ Murabaha deposits 851,625 - . 851,625
Available for sale investments . 448 556 1,221,667 1,670,223
Cash and cash equivalent 400,000 - 52,982 482,982
Total 1,151,625 448,556 1,304,649 3,004,830
2017
Mudaraba/ Murabaha deposits 82,035 . - 82,035
Available for sale investiments 2,464,779 2,464,779
Cash and cash equivatent 100,600 - 182,059 182,059
Tatal 182,035 - 2,646,838 2,328.873
Orther Price Risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial tnstruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
{other than those arising from commission rate rigk or currency risk), whether thase changes are cansed by factors specific to the individual
financial insirument or its issuer, or factors affecting ull similar finuncial instruments traded in the market. The Company’s investments
amounting nil (2017: SAR 107.25 million) are susceptihle to market price risk arising from uncertainty about the future value of invested
securities. The Company limits this nature of market risk by diversifying its invested portfolip and by sciively monitoring the developments
in markets.

The impact of hypothetical change of a 102 increase and 10% decrease in the market prices of invesiments on Company's profit wauld be
as follows:

Effect on Company’s loss

Feir valur change SAR'00D
+{ . 10% &

+i-10% +5- 1636

December 31, 2018
December 31, 2017
‘The sensitivity analysis presented is based upon the portfolio position as at Decamber 31, 2018 and 2017, Accordingly, the sensitivity

anelysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effect on the Company's assefs of future movements in the value of investments held
by the Company. The sensltivity of level 3 investments is disclosed in note 28,
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Cantinued)
(d) Credit Rizk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a finencial instroment will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party 1o incur a financial
Yoas. For all classez of financial instruments held by the Company, 1he maximum credit risk exposure ta the Company is the carrying value as
dizclased in the statement of financial position. The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the relevant components of
the statement of financial position:

2018 2017
SAR'000

ASSETS - INSURANCE OPERATIONS
Cash and cash equivalents 1,117,258 1,115,144
Receivahlas, net 1,517,987 2,257,678
Available-for-sale investments 1,234,907 2,960,430
Mudaraba/ Murabaha deposits 1,387,500 -
Accrued investrent incame . 71,739
Investment in associales 7921 7,021
Other assets 261,088 [89,619
Reinsurers® share of putstanding claims, net {including IBNR) 2,917,646 1,766,484
Total Eidd-déﬂ? 8126 BI 115
{d) Credit rlak {TContinued)

1018 2017

SAR’00D

ASSETS - SHAREHOLDERS OPERATIONS
Cash and cash aquivalenis (Mote 13) 482,982 282,059
Available-for-sale invesiments 1,670,223 1,564,779
Investment in associates 87,195 88,447
Other assets - 1,750
Murabaha deposils 851,625 82,035
Accrued investment income - 86,354
Statutory deposit (including accrued income) 127,254 126,997
Total 3,219,279 3,232,421
Conceniration uf credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic oy indusiry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties whase aggregate
credit exposure is significant in relation to the Company’s total credit exposure. Approximately 99% (2017: approximately 99%) of the
Company's underwriting activitles ere carried out in Seudi Arabia, The Company’s portfolio of financial instruments is broadly diversified
and transactions are entered into with diverse credit-worthy counterparties (hereby mitigating any significant concentrations of credit risk.
Also refer Note 11 for details. The Company has significant exposure amouniing to SAR 2.3 billion classified as available for sale
investments in Shariah Motes Issued by Castle Investments Limited {Refer Note 7).
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
{€) Liguidity risk (Continued)

Credit risk ¢xposure Invesiments

2018 2017
SAR '000 SAR 000
Non- Non-
ASSETS Investment  investraent Invesbment  investment
INSU PE| Grade Grade Unrated Grade Grade Unmted
Available-for-sale investments 1,234,907 . - 2,960,430 - -
Mudarabs' Murabeha deposits 1,387,500 - - - . -
Receivables, mat 1,517,987 ~ - 2257678 -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,Li7,288 - - 1115144 - -
Tolal 3,739,665 1,517,587 - 4,075,574 2,257,678 =
1018 207
SAR 00D SAR '000
Mon- Non-
ASSETS Investment inveatment Investiment  investment
HAREHOLDERS © 10 Grade Grade Unrated Grade Grade Unruted
Available-for-sakc investments 1,470,223 - - 2,564,779 - -
Mudaraby' Murabaha deposils 851,625 - - 12035
Acerued investment income - - - 86,334 -
Cash and cash equivalents 482982 - = 282,059 -
Total 3,004,830 - - 3,015,227 - .
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3. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(2) Liquidity risk {Continued)

Liquidity risk is the risk ihat the Compary will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet obligations and commitments associated with
financial liabilities. The Company has & proper cash manegement system, where daily cash collzclions and payments ate strictly monitored
and reconciled on regular basis. The Company manages liquidity risk by mainfaining maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities

and investing in liquid financial assats,

The table below summarizes the maturities of the Company's undiscounted contractual ubligations relating to financlel labilities:

Msturity Profile

ASSETS

Avzilable-for-sale investments
Investments in associates
Mudaraba/ Murebshe deposits
Receivables, net

Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accrued investment income

Cash and cash equivalents
Reinsurers' share of culstanding claims
Reinsurers’ share af Incurred but not
reported claims

Total

I

Reinsurers’ balances payable

Gross outstanding claims

Ireurred bul not reporied clzims reserve
Premiom deficiency reserve

Reserve for discontinued operations
Reserve for tekaful activities

Claims payable, accrued expenses and
other liabilities

End-oF-service indemnities

Total liquidity gap

2018 017

SAR 000 SAR 000

Less thamt one  More than Less than Morc than
year one Year Total ohe yex ONe year Taral
1,234,907 - 1,234,907 2,960,430 - 2,960,430
7,921 . 7921 7.021 - 7,024
187,500 . 1,387,500 - - .
1,517,987 - 1,517,987 2,257,678 - 2,257,678
261,088 - 261,088 89,619 - 189,619
. . - 71,739 - 71,739
1,117,258 - 1,117,258 1,115,144 - 1,115,144
2,725.809 - 2,725,809 1,375,277 - 1,375,277
191,837 . 191,837 391,207 - 391,207
8444,307 - 8,444.307 8,368,115 - #.368,115
94,720 - 94,720 207,922 207,922
3,271,156 B 3,271,156 2,374,764 - 2,314,764
1,684,183 - 1,684,183 1,700,269 1,700,269
1,272 - T.272 137,248 - 137,248
1,621 1,621 1,621 - [.621
8,650 - 8,690 10,576 - 10,576
1,505,280 - 1,505,280 1,287,652 . 1,287,632
- 133,276 133,276 - 119,242 119,242
6,572,921 133,276 6,706,198 5,720,052 119,242 5,839,294
1,871,385 (133,276) 1,738,108 2,648,063 {119,242) 2,528,821
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31, RISK MANAGEMENT (Cantinued)
(¢) Liguidity »isk (Continued)

2018 2017
SAR 000 SAR '000

ASSETS Lessthan one  More than Lessthan  Morc than
SHAREHOLDERS OPERATIONS year one year Total one year 0ne year Total
Avnilable-for-sale investments 1,670,223 - 1,570,223 2,564,779 - 2. 564,779
Investments in associates 87,195 - 87,195 88,447 - 88,447
Prepaid expenscs and other assets - - - 1,750 - 1,750
Accnied investment income - - - 86,354 . 86,354
Murabaha/ Murabaha deposits 851,625 . 851,625 82,033 - 82,035
Cash and cash equivalents 482,982 - 482,982 282,059 - 282,059
Total 3.092,025 - 3,082,025 1,105,424 - 3,105,424
LIABILITIES
SHAREIIOLDERS OPERATIONS
Dividends payable 6411 - 6,411 6414 - 6,414
Acerued expenses and other Liabilities 7822 - 7.822 4,000 . 4,000

14,233 - 14,233 10,414 - 10,414
Totel liquidity gap 3,077,792 - 3077992 3,095,010 - 3005010

To manage the liquidity risk arising from financial liabilities mentioned above, the Company holds liquid asscis comprising cash and ¢ash equivalenes

ang investment securities. These assets can be readily sold 1o meet liquidity requitements.

The assets with maturity less than one year are expected to realize as follows:

s Available for sale invesiments include investmenis in mutoat funds and sukuks and are keld for cash management purpases and expected to be

maturee! settled within 12 months from the balance shest date.
¢ Accrued investment income is expected to be realized within [ to 3 months from slatement of financlal position's dare.

= Mudaraba/ Murebaha deposits classified as ‘cash and cash equivalents’ arc deposits placed with high credit rating financial institutions with
maturity of less than three months from the date of placement. Other mudaraba/ murabaha deposits are expacted to be matured within six months

from ihe date of placemeni.
*  Cash and bank balances are available on demand.

* Reinsurers share of outstending claims majorly pertain to property and casualty segment and are generally realized within fhree to six months

based on settlement of balarces with reinsurars,

The liabilitics with maturity less than one year are expected to settle as follows:

»  Reinsurers’ balances paysble are settled on & quarterly basis as per terms of reinsurance agresments.

s Mejority of gross outstanding claims are expected to settled within two months in accordance with statutory timetinas for payment, Property
and casualty policies due to the inherent nature are generally setiled within one manth from the date of receipt of loss adjustor report.

# The claims payable, eccrued expenses and other lisbilities arc expected to seitle within a period of three months from the period end date,

s Surplus distribution payable is to be settled within six months of annual general meeting in which finencial statements are approved,
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
{¢) Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variely of causes associated with the processes, technology and infrastructure
supporling the Company®s operations either internally within the Company or externally at the Company's service praviders, and from external
factars other than erediy, market and liquidlty risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally acoepted standards of
investment management behavior. Qperational risks arise fiom all of the Company's activities.

The Company's objective is to manage operational risk so as ta balance limiting of financial losses and damage to its reputation with achieving its
investment ohjective of genersling returns for investors. The ptimary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls over
operational risk rests with the Beard of Directors, This responsibility sncompasses the controls in the following areas;

Requirements for eppropriate segrepation of duties between various functions, roles und responsibllivies;
= Requircments for the reconciliation and manitoring of transactions;
= Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;
+  Documentation of controls and pracedures;
+  Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedures to address the risks identified;
- FEithical and business standards; and
~  Risk miligation policies and procedures.

Senior Management ensures that the Company's stefF has adequate training and cxperience and fosters effective communication refated to
cperational risk management,

32, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it is eble to continue as gaing coneern and camply with the regulators® capilal requirsments of the
markets in which the Company operates while maximizing the retum fo stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance. The
capital structure of the Company consists of equity altributable to equily holders comprising paid shate capital, reserves and retained earnings.

As per guidelines laid out by SAMA in Article 66 of the [mplementing Regulations of the Cooperative Insurance Companies Control Law detailing
the solvency margin required to he maintained, the Company shall maintuin solvency margin equivalent to the highest af the following theee methods
as per SAMA Implementing Regolations:

*  Minimum Capital Requirement of SAR 200 million
¢ Premium Solvency Margin
®  Claims Selvency Margin

As at December 31, 2018 the Company®s solvency level is less than the minimum solvency margin required by the Implementing Regwlations of the
Coopetative Insurance Companies Control Law. The Company expects to meet the solvency margin requicement in the future, The capilal struciure
ofthe Company as ul December 21, 2018 consists of paid-up share capitatof SAR 1,250 million, legal reserves af SAR. 1,000 miilion and accumutated
losses of SAR 230.8 million (December 31, 2017: paid-up share capital of SAR ,250 million, legal reserves of SAR 1,000 million and retzined
earnings of SAR 48.5 million.) in the statement of financial position.

33. REALIZED GAINS / (LOSS) ON FINANCIAL ASSETS, NET

2018 2017
INSURANCE OPERATIONS SAR'000
Realized (losay¥ gain on available-for-sale financial assets {32,764) 13,255
Realized (loss)/ gain on financial assets, net {32,764 13,255
RATI
Realized gain/ (loss) on available-for-sale financial assets 58,572 {1,008)
Realized gains (lass} on financial asscts, net 56,572 {1,008}
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

g}  Asof December 31, 2018, the Company had contingencies retated 1o outstanding letters of guarantee amounting 1o SAR 449
millian (2017: SAR 103 milllon) issued in favor of GAZT related to zakat assESSIOELS raised for previous yEars (MNote 20).

by Asof December 31, 2018, outstanding letiers of credit amouned 10 SAR 143 million (2017: SAR 189 millipn) in relation 10
performance band cbligation.

¢) The Company, in common with significant majority of insurets, is subject to litigation in the normsl course of its business. The
Company based on independent legal edvice, does not believe that the outcome of these court cases will have & material impact
on the Company's income of financial conditian.

RECLASSIFICAT!ON OF COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain of the priar year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the presentation in the current year. These changes were made for
better presentation of tatances and trangactions in the statement of financie! information of the Company and does not have a materigl impact
on the fnancial statements.

. Prepaid expendes gnd other assets amounting to SAR 7.6 mitlion and SAR 11.2 million have been reclassified a8 “Intangible agsets” and
iDeferred excess of loss premiums” respectively.
Reingurance share of gross outstanding cluims amounting 1o SAR 391 .3 million has been seclassified as “Reinsurance share of incurred

but not reported claims”.
. Gross oulstanding claims and reserves amounting 1o SAR 1.7 bitlion and SAR 137 million have becnt reclassificd B3 sfncurred but not

reporied cleims” and “Premium deficiency eserve” respectively.

Claims payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities amounting 1o SAR 119 million has been raciassified as “End-of-service
indempitizs”.

Furthes, refer note 2 for the changes in the primary statements.

DUE FROM SHAREHOLDERS/ DUE TO INSURANCE OPERATIONS

During the year shareholders have ahsorbed 100%s deficit fram jnsurance operations amounting 1o SAR 426.% million resulting in due to
insutence operation balance as at December 11, 2018 amounting 10 SAR 1,066 mitlion.

APPROVAL OF THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS

“The financizl infarmation have been approved by the Audit Committes on behalf of the Board of Direciors, on Rajeb 14, 1440H, coresponding
10 March 20, 201%.
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